Blochman Union School District
Benjamin Foxen School * 4949 Foxen Canyon Road
Santa Maria, CA 93454 * (805) 937-1148

BOARD OF TRUSTEES AGENDA
Tuesday, December 12, 2023
Library
5:30 p.m. — Regular Session

Any materials required by law to be made available to the public prior to a meeting of the Board of
Education of the District can be inspected at the above address during normal business hours.

Individuals who require special accommodations including, but not limited to, American Sign Language
interpreter, accessible seating or documentation in accessible formats should contact the superintendent
or designee within a reasonable time before the meeting date. Board agendas can be found on the district’s
website at www.blochmanusd.org,

Governing Board Members
Shannon Clay, President
Kelly Salas-Ernst, Clerk
Thomas Gibbons, Trustee
Daniella Pearce, Trustee
Jeania Reasner, Trustee

L. PUBLIC SESSION: 5:30 p.m. Call to Order and Flag Salute

IL Welcome Guests

III.  Reports

A. Charter School Reports
i. Family Partnership Charter School
ii. Trivium Charter School
iii. Trivium Charter School: Adventure
iv. Trivium Charter School: Voyage

B. Teacher Reports

C. Superintendent/Principal’s Report

Iv. ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR INFORMATION
A. Facilities update
B. Facilities use - none

V. ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR DISCUSSION - none.

VI. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS
A. Approval of Minutes
i. Minutes of November 14, 2023 Regular Meeting

*** T IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve the minutes as presented:
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MOVED: SECOND:

VOTE:
Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst;

Thomas Gibbons:

B. Approval of Monthly Warrants — November 2023
i. Commercial Warrants $114,746.08

ii. Payroll $209,296.71
iii. Revolving Fund $ 0.00
TOTAL $324,042.79

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve the Warrants as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

C. Approval of Trivium Charter Schools 2022/23 audit report

*** IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve Trivium Charter Schools
2022/23 audit report as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

VII. ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR ACTION

A. Approval of the Governing Board meeting schedule for 2024

***IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve the 2024
Governing Board meeting schedule as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

B. Election of the 2024 School Board President.

***The Board elects as the 2024 School Board President.
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MOVED: SECOND:

VOTE;
Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

C. Election of the 2024 School Board Clerk/Secretary

***The Board elects as the 2024 School Board Clerk/Secretary.
MOVED: SECOND:

VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:

Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

D. Election of the 2024 School Board Representative to the County Committee on School
District Organization.

***The Board elects as the 2024 School Board Representative to
the County Committee on School District Organization.

MOVED: SECOND:

VOTE;

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:

Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

E. Approval of district personnel for Release of Commercial and Payroll warrants:
i. Doug Brown, Superintendent
ii. Nancy Shafer, Interim Business Manager
iii. Deanna Barnes, Accounting Assistant II
iv. Kimberly Troeger, School Secretary

***IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve the district
personnel for release of commercial and payroll warrants as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

F. Approval of the district personnel to act as District Agents:
i. Doug Brown, Superintendent
ii. Nancy Shafer, Interim Business Manager
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***IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve the district
personnel to act at district agents as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

G. Approval of the Resolution of the Governing Board Delegating the Authority to Make
Cash and Budget Transfers.

***IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve the
Resolution Delegating the Authority to Make Cash and Budget Transfers as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

H. Approval of Benjamin Foxen Elementary School November 2023 Attendance Report.

*** IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve the Benjamin Foxen
Elementary School November 2023 Attendance Report as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

I. Approval of Blochman Union School District’s 2022/2023 audit report.

***IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve Blochman
Union School District’s 2022/2023 audit report as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

J. Approval of the Blochman Union School District’s 2023/2024 Comprehensive School Safety
Plan.
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*** [T IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve the
Blochman Union School District’s 2023/2024 Comprehensive School Safety Plan as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

K. Approval of revised board policies:
a. BP0410; BP1312.2; AR1312.2; E1312.2-E1; BP 1312.3; AR 1312.3; AR1312.4;
E(1)1312.4; E(2)1312.4; BP5145.3; BP6143; AR6143; BP6161.1; AR6161.1;
E(1)6161.1; BP6161.11; BP6163.1

***]T IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve the revised
board policies as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:
Thomas Gibbons:

L. Approval of Blochman Union School District’s 2023/2024 First Interim report.

***IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve Blochman
Union School District’s 2023/2024 First Interim report as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

M. Approval of donations:
a. Golden State Water Company; $300; to purchase food gift cards for students

*** [T IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve the
donations as presented:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

VIII. PUBLIC COMMENTS
PUBLIC COMMENTS ARE WELCOME
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The Blochman Union School District will receive public comments about items not appearing on
today’s agenda, as well as other matters within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. All such
comments will be received during the Public Comments section of the agenda. Individuals who
address the Board are limited to three (3) minutes to speak on any item and a total of 10 minutes on all
items for their presentation. The Board may limit the total time for all public comment to 30 minutes.
Persons needing additional time are requested to submit the information in writing.

For comments concerning matters not on the agenda, open meeting laws and fairness to other
residents who may have an interest in your topic prohibit the Board from taking action or engaging in
extended discussion of your concerns. The Board may direct staff to meet at a later date with speakers
who have specific concerns or needs. The Board may also direct that an issue be placed on a future
agenda for discussion and consideration. This permits the Board and staff members to prepare and
receive necessary information and for the public to be aware that a topic is being formally considered.
We appreciate your cooperation.

IX. MISCELLANEOUS AGENDA ITEMS

Items Proposed for Future Action or Discussion

Blochman Union School District Board Member Items

Items not on the Agenda

The next regular board meeting will be held on January 9, 2024, open session at 5:30
p.m., Library.

TOowp

X. CLOSED SESSION: The board will consider and may act on the following items during
closed session:

A. Certificated and Classified Personnel Actions
i. The board will be asked to review and approve hiring, transfers, promotion,
evaluations, terminations, and resignations.
ii. Liability claim pursuant to California Government Code Section 54956.95
a. Claimant: EG

b. Name of agency claimed against: Blochman Union School District

XI. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION
A. Report of action taken during closed session.

XII. Adjourn

TIME:

MOVED: SECOND:
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Jeania Reasner:
Daniella Pearce: Kelly Salas-Ernst:

Thomas Gibbons:

December 12, 2023 Regular Meeting






Blochman Union School District
Benjamin Foxen School * 4949 Foxen Canyon Road
Santa Maria, CA 93454 * (805) 937-1148

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES
Tuesday, November 14, 2023
Library
5:30 p.m. — Regular Session

A regular meeting of the Board of Education of the Blochman Union School District was held at the
Benjamin Foxen Elementary School Library on November 14, 2023.

Members present: Shannon Clay, Jeania Reasner, Kelly Salas-Ernst. Absent: Thomas Gibbons, Daniella
Pearce.

L PUBLIC SESSION: Mrs. Clay called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m., led the flag
salute, and welcomed guests.

IL. Reports
A. Charter School Reports

i. Family Partnership Charter School — none.

ii. Trivium Charter Schools — Trisha Vais reported that their administration team
recently attended two charter school conferences which were very informative.
The A+ conference is for non-classroom based charter schools. There were
representatives from about 90 charter schools in attendance. Current enrollment is
approximately 900 students. They hosted a laser tag event last Friday that was well
attended and very fun.

B. Teacher Reports — none.

C. Superintendent/Principal’s Report — Mr. Brown reported that current enrollment is 196.
The Halloween Carnival was a huge success and well attended by parents. Thank you to
Mrs. Arkinson for organizing this event. Students in grades 6 — 8 went on a field trip to the
San Luis Obispo Museum and Mission. Last week was the end of the trimester and report
cards will go home this week. Basketball practice has begun. We still need a few more
participants for the girls’ team. The cafeteria staff has been doing a great job. October
breakfast participation is up 40% over last year and lunch participation is up 16.5%. The
students are enjoying the food. Also, thank you to our teachers for doing a great job.
Christmas break starts December 18", and we will return on January 8™,

III. ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR INFORMATION
A. Facilities use — none

IV. ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR DISCUSSION
A. Facilities update — Mr. Brown reported that general, ongoing maintenance was performed
during the month of October.

B. Electrical Distribution System Assessment — The board reviewed the electrical
assessment provided by the electrical engineer hired by 19-6 Architects on the district’s
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behalf. The board agreed that due to the age of the existing electrical system, we should go
ahead and implement the recommendations in this report.

C. Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) — The board reviewed the current LCAP
goals. Mrs. Clay emphasized that the board is interested in art programs,

V. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

A. Approval of Minutes

i.

Minutes of October 10, 2023 Regular Meeting

***IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve the minutes as presented:

MOVED:

VOTE:

Shannon Clay:
Daniella Pearce:
Thomas Gibbons:

Jeania Reasner SECOND: Kelly Salas-Ernst
Aye Jeania Reasner: Aye

Absent Kelly Salas-Ernst: Aye

Absent

B. Approval of Monthly Warrants — October, 2023

i.
il.
iii.

Commercial Warrants $ 418,355.02
Payroll $ 104,888.51
Revolving Fund $ 100.00
TOTAL $ 523,343.53

*** IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education approve the Warrants as

presented:

MOVED:

VOTE:

Shannon Clay:
Daniella Pearce:
Thomas Gibbons:

Kelly Salas-Ernst SECOND: Jeania Reasner
Aye Jeania Reasner: Aye

Absent Kelly Salas-Ernst: Aye

Absent

V1. ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR ACTION

A. Approval of Benjamin Foxen Elementary School October 2023 Attendance Report

*** IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve the
Benjamin Foxen Elementary School October 2023 Attendance Report as presented:

MOVED:

VOTE:

Shannon Clay:
Daniella Pearce:
Thomas Gibbons:

Jeania Reasner SECOND: Kelly Salas-Ernst
Aye Jeania Reasner: Aye

Absent Kelly Salas-Ernst: Aye

Absent
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B. Approval of the Blochman Union School District’s 2023/2024 Comprehensive School
Safety Plan.

***IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve the
Blochman Union School District’s 2023/2024 Comprehensive School Safety Plan as presented:

MOVED: Jeania Reasner SECOND: Shannon Clay
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Aye Jeania Reasner: Aye

Daniella Pearce: Absent Kelly Salas-Ernst: Nay

Thomas Gibbons:  Absent

The motion failed and the item will be placed on the December board agenda.

C. Approval of the 2022/2023 Blochman Union School District Annual and Five-Year
Developer Fee report.

***IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve the
2022/2023 Annual and Five-Year Developer Fee report as presented:

MOVED: Jeania Reasner SECOND: Kelly Salas-Ernst
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Aye Jeania Reasner: Aye

Daniella Pearce: Absent Kelly Salas-Ernst: Aye

Thomas Gibbons:  Absent

The motion failed and the item will be placed on the December board agenda.

D. Approval of revised board policies:
i. BP0410; BP1312.2; AR1312.2; E1312.2-E1; BP 1312.3; AR 1312.3; AR1312.4;
E(1)1312.4; E(2)1312.4; BP5145.3; BP6143; AR6143; BP6161.1; AR6161.1;
E(1)6161.1; BP6161.11; BP6163.1

***IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve revised
board policies as presented:

MOVED: Jeania Reasner SECOND: Shannon Clay
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Aye Jeania Reasner: Aye

Daniella Pearce: Absent Kelly Salas-Ernst: Nay

Thomas Gibbons: Absent

The motion failed and the item will be placed on the December board agenda.

E. Approval of the Santa Barbara SIPE District Personnel to Fulfill Positions.

***IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve the Santa
Barbara SIPE District Personnel to Fulfill Positions as presented:
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MOVED: Kelly Salas-Ernst SECOND: Jeania Reasner
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Aye Jeania Reasner: Aye

Daniella Pearce: Absent Kelly Salas-Ernst: Aye

Thomas Gibbons:  Absent

F. Approval of Resolution 2023-11-14 and Notice of Completion for the MUR and
School Renovation Phase I completion.

***IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve Resolution
2023-11-14 and Notice of Completion for the MUR and School Renovation Phase I as presented:

MOVED: Jeania Reasner SECOND: Kelly Salas-Ernst
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Aye Jeania Reasner: Aye

Daniella Pearce: Absent Kelly Salas-Ernst: Aye

Thomas Gibbons:  Absent

G. Approval of donations:
i. Doug Brown, $325; ASB 8" Grade Class

***IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve the
donations as presented:

MOVED: Jeania Reasner SECOND: Kelly Salas-Ernst
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Aye Jeania Reasner: Aye

Daniella Pearce: Absent Kelly Salas-Ernst: Aye

Thomas Gibbons:  Absent

H. Approval of inter-district transfers.

***IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Board of Education take action to approve the inter-
district transfers as presented:

MOVED: Kelly Salas-Ernst SECOND: Jeania Reasner
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Aye Jeania Reasner: Aye

Daniella Pearce: Absent Kelly Salas-Ernst: Aye

Thomas Gibbons:  Absent

VII. PUBLIC COMMENTS - Trisha Vais discussed recent court cases regarding religion in
schools.

VIII. MISCELLANEOUS AGENDA ITEMS
A. Items Proposed for Future Action or Discussion — none.
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B. Blochman Union School District Board Member Items — Mrs. Salas-Ernst recognized
Native American Month and wished everyone a happy Thanksgiving.

C. Items not on the Agenda — none.

D. Next regularly scheduled board meeting: December 12, 2023, open session at 5:30 p.m.,
Library. This meeting will also be the annual organizational meeting.

IX. CLOSED SESSION: The board adjourned to closed session at 6:41 p.m. where they will
consider and may act on the following:

A. Certificated and Classified Personnel Actions
i. The board will be asked to review and approve hiring, transfers, promotion,
evaluations, terminations, and resignations.
ii. Conference with labor negotiator; Doug Brown, district negotiator.

X. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION — The board reconvened in open session at 6:50 p.m.

A. Report of action taken during closed session — Mrs. Salas-Ernst reported that the board
took no action.

XI. Adjourn

TIME: 6:51 p.m.

MOVED: Kelly Salas-Ernst SECOND: Jeania Reasner
VOTE:

Shannon Clay: Aye Jeania Reasner: Aye

Daniella Pearce: Aye Kelly Salas-Ernst: Aye

Thomas Gibbens:  Absent
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ReqgPay12a

Checks Dated 11/01/2023 through 11/30/2023

Board Report

Check Check Pay to the Order of Expensed Check
Number Date Fund-Object Amount Amount
01-766318 11/06/2023 Doyel, Jennifer M 01-4300 53.91
01-766319 11/06/2023 Advanced Wireless 01-5910 287.54
01-766320 11/06/2023 Amazon Capital Services 01-4300 71.02
01-766321 11/06/2023 California Dept. Of Education 13-4710 218.40
01-766322 11/06/2023 Coast Networx, Inc. 01-5800 50.00
01-766323 11/06/2023 Edna's Bakery 13-4710 139.85
01-766324 11/06/2023 Frontier Communications 01-5910 176.24
01-766325 11/06/2023 IndoorDoctor 01-4300 5,786.18
01-766326 11/06/2023 Jordanos Food Service Division 13-4300 1,171.15

13-4710 4,361.28 5,632.43
01-766327 11/06/2023 Mission Linen Supply Inc. 01-4300 96.81
01-766328 11/06/2023 Mobile Volt Professionals 01-6400 12,654.00
01-766329 11/06/2023 Nancy B Shafer, CPA 01-5800 8,190.00
01-766330 11/06/2023 Q'Connor Pest Control 01-5800 85.00
01-766331 11/06/2023 Santa Barbara County Fire 01-4300 149.00
01-766332 11/06/2023  Sisc Ill Insurance 67-5450 19,608.60
01-766333 11/06/2023 The Berry Man, Inc. 13-4710 190.28
01-766334 11/06/2023 Valley Fresh Produce 13-4710 389.50
01-766335 11/06/2023 WM CORPORATE SERVICES, INC. 01-5570 2,608.36
01-767327 11/13/2023 Dekorte, Holly J 01-4300 14.08
01-767328 11/13/2023 Myers, Nancy 01-4300 520.27
01-767329 11/13/2023 19six Architects 14-6200 2,518.75
01-767330 11/13/2023 805 Dairy Distributing LLC 13-4710 900.00
01-767331 11/13/2023 Amazon Capital Services 01-4300 277.84
01-767332 11/13/2023 American Star Tours 01-5800 26,796.00
01-767333 11/13/2023 Culligan San Paso 01-4300 413.68
01-767334 11/13/2023 Diani Building Corp. 14-6200 13,966.18
01-767335 11/13/2023 Edna's Bakery 13-4710 185.30
01-767336 11/13/2023 Go To Communications, Inc. 01-5910 49713
01-767337 11/13/2023 Insight Public Sector SLED 01-4400 3,218.88
01-767338 11/13/2023 Mission Linen Supply Inc. 01-4300 89.73
01-767339 11/13/2023 US OMNI & TSACG Compliance 01-5800 50.00
01-767340 11/13/2023 Valley Fresh Produce 13-4710 610.50
01-767341 11/13/2023 XEROX FINANCIAL SERVICES 01-5630 604.44
01-768841 11/20/2023 Christie, Kathryn A 01-5800 24.00
01-768842 11/20/2023 805 Dairy Distributing LLC 13-4710 625.00
01-768843 11/20/2023 Alpha Fire Unlimited 13-5800 195.17
01-768844 11/20/2023 Amazon Capital Services 01-4300 69.36
01-768845 11/20/2023 American Star Tours 01-5800 250.05
01-768846 11/20/2023 Best, Best & Krieger LLP 01-5830 1,642.30
01-768847 11/20/2023 Department Of Justice 01-5800 79.00
01-768848 11/20/2023 Edna's Bakery 13-4710 71.25
01-768849 11/20/2023 Golden State Water Company 01-5530 293.68
01-768850 11/20/2023 Mission Linen Supply Inc. 01-4300 208.40
01-768851 11/20/2023 Pacific Gas & Electric 01-5520 547.50
01-768852 11/20/2023 SoCalGas 01-5510 356.34

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization
of the Board of Trustees. It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.
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ReqPay12a Board Report

‘Checks Dated 11/01/2023 through 11/30/2023

Check Check Pay to the Order of Expensed Check
Number Date Fund-Object Amount Amount
01-768853 11/20/2023 US Bank Corporate Payments 01-4300 654.64
01-5800 126.81
01-5919 20.50
01-9505 1,050.45
13-4300 200.59
13-4400 526.59
13-4710 331.056
Unpaid Tax 19.73- 2,890.90
01-768854 11/20/2023 Valley Fresh Produce 13-4710 405.90
01-768855 11/20/2023 Verizon Wireless . 01-5910 137.33
Total Number of Checks 48 114,746.08
Fund Recap
Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount
01 General Fund 33 68,150.47
13 Cafeteria Spec Rev Fund 13 10,521.81
14 Deferred Maintenance Fund 2 16,484.93
67 Self-Insurance Fund 1 1 19,608.60
Total Number of Checks 48 114,765.81
Less Unpaid Tax Liability 19.73-
Net (Check Amount) 114,746.08
The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization
of the Board of Trustees. It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved. Page 2 of 2
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Governing Board
The Trivium Academy of Classical Education
Santa Maria, California

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of The Trivium Academy of Classical Education

{the Organization} (a California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation), which comprise the statement of
financial position as of June 30, 2023, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and
cash flows for the year then ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements.

[n our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Organization as of June 30, 2023, and the changes in its net assets
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS} and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the
Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Adoption of New Accounting Standard

As discussed in Note 4 to the financial statements, the Organization has adopted the provisions of FASB
Accounting Standards Codification Topic 842, Leases, as of July 1, 2022 using the modified retrospective
approach with an adjustment at the beginning of the adoption period. Our opinion is not modified with
respect to this matter.

What inspires you, inspires us. eidebailly.com
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Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Organization’s ability to
continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be
issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on
the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

® Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.

® Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

¢ Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Organization’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.



Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The accompanying supplementary information on pages 17-27 are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In
our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 29,
2023 on our consideration of the Organization’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the Organization’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

é@cﬁdg Lo

Rancho Cucamonga, California
November 29, 2023



The Trivium Academy of Classical Education

Statement of Financial Position
June 30, 2023

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Non-current assets
Security deposits
Operating lease right-of-use asset, net

Total non-current assets
Total assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Accrued compensated absences
Refundable advance

Current portion of operating lease liability

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities

Operating lease liability, less current portion

Total liabilities

Net Assets
Without donor restrictions

Total liabilities and net assets

See Notes to Financial Statements

S 2,831,348
627,254
139,050

3,597,652

4,100
32,370

36,470

S 3,634,122

$ 278,973
555,866
38,484
1,152,222
8,578

2,034,123

23,752

2,057,875

1,576,247

S 3,634,122




The Trivium Academy of Classical Education
Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Support and Revenues

Local Control Funding Formula S 8,814,418
Federal revenue 345,751
Other state revenue 1,619,247
Local revenues 100,000
Interest income 10,874
Fundraising revenue 345
Total support and revenues 10,890,635
Expenses
Program services 9,416,085
Management and general 1,100,188
Total expenses 10,516,273
Change in Net Assets 374,362
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 1,201,885
Net Assets, End of Year S 1,576,247

See Notes to Financial Statements 5



The Trivium Academy of Classical Education

Statement of Functional Expenses
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Program Management and Total
Services General Expenses
Salaries S 5,941,197 S 611,844 S 6,553,041
Employee benefits 1,667,440 11,472 1,678,912
Payroll taxes 233,352 4,084 237,436
Fees for services 228,867 335,400 564,267
Advertising and promotions 2,106 216 2,322
Office expenses 49,261 15,971 65,232
Information technology 181,877 758 182,635
Occupancy 331,061 33,947 365,008
Conferences and meeting 121,044 - 121,044
Interest - 493 493
Depreciation - 6,442 6,442
Insurance 24,838 2,555 27,393
Other expenses 42,226 - 42,226
Capital outlay 33,992 3,482 37,474
Instructional materials 535,921 8,284 544,205
District oversight fees 22,903 65,240 88,143
Total functional expenses S 9,416,085 S 1,100,188 $ 10,516,273

See Notes to Financial Statements




The Trivium Academy of Classical Education
Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Operating Activities
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash from (used for) operating activities
Depreciation expense
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Receivables
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Refundable advance
Operating lease assets and liabilities

Net Cash from (used for) Operating Activities

Financing Activities
Principal payments on notes

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

Supplemental Cash Flow Disclosure
Cash paid during the year in interest

See Notes to Financial Statements

$

374,362

6,442

308,250
5,404
(529,527)
23,148
808,486
(40)

996,525

(305,600)

690,925

2,140,423

$

2,831,348

656




The Trivium Academy of Classical Education
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

Note 1- Principal Activity and Significant Accounting Policies
Organization

The Trivium Academy of Classical Education (the Organization) was incorporated in the State of California in
2011 as a nonprofit public benefit corporation that is organized under the Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation
Law exclusively for charitable and educational purposes within the meaning of 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1954. The Charter Schools were renewed by Blochman Union School District for five years ending in
2025,

Trivium Charter School

Charter school number authorized by the State: 1319

Trivium Charter School is located in Santa Maria, California at 1550 S. College Drive, that currently serves
317 students.

Trivium Charter School: Voyage

Charter school number authorized by the State: 1995

Trivium Charter School: Voyage is located in Goleta, California at 4597 Hollister Avenue, that currently serves
291 students.

Trivium Charter School: Adventure

Charter school number authorized by the State: 1994

Trivium Charter Schoo!: Adventure is located in Lompoc, California at 1600 Berkeley Drive, that currently serves
258 students.

The Academy also operates two Learning Centers, which serves all students in grades K-12:

* Arroyo Grande Learning Center: 207 Pilgrim Way, California
* Atascadero Learning Center: 9333 Santa Barbara Road, California

Trivium’s Mission: “Is to offer the best combination of homeschooling, classroom experience and personalized
learning. Trivium focuses on creating an engaging school experience whether your student is in the classroom or
at home. Trivium wants your student(s) to enjoy learning while mastering foundational and critical thinking
skills. This equips our students with the tools to be successful at whatever they choose to do in their future”.

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements were prepared using the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to nonprofit
organizations. Revenues are recognized as discussed below, and expenditures are recognized in the accounting
period in which the liability is incurred.



The Trivium Academy of Classical Education
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

Net Assets

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor or grantor
restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified and reported as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions ~ Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject to
donor restrictions. The Governing Board has designated, from net assets without donor restrictions, net assets
for discretionary State grants.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions — Net assets subject to donor (or certain grantor) restrictions. Some donor
imposed (or grantor) restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time
or other events specified by the donor. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor
stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity. The Organization did not have net assets with donor
restrictions for the year ended June 30, 2023,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers all cash including cash in County Investment Pool and highly liquid financial
instruments with original maturities of three months or less, and which are neither held for nor restricted by
donors for long-term purposes, to be cash and cash equivalents.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which exceed federaily insured limits. Accounts are
guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000 per depositor, per insured bank,
for each account ownership category. At June 30, 2023, the Organization had approximately $984,602, in excess
of FDIC-insured limits.

Receivables and Credit Policies

Receivables consist primarily of noninterest-bearing amounts due for educational programs. Management
determines the allowance for uncollectable receivables based on historical experience, an assessment of
economic conditions, and a review of subsequent collections. Receivables are written off when deemed
uncollectable. No allowance for doubtful accounts has been established, as the Organization deems all amounts
to be fully collectible. Substantially ail outstanding receivables as of June 30, 2023 are due from state and/or
federal sources related to grant contributions and are expected to be collected within a period of less than one
year,



The Trivium Academy of Classical Education

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment additions over $5,000 are recorded at cost, or if donated, at fair value on the date of
donation. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets
ranging from 3 to 30 years, or in the case of capitalized leased assets or leasehold improvements, the lesser of
the useful life of the asset or the lease term. When assets are sold or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related
depreciation are removed from the accounts, and any remaining gain or loss is included in the statement of
activities. Cost of maintenance and repairs that do not improve or extend the useful lives of the respective
assets are expensed currently.

The Organization reviews the carrying values of property and equipment for impairment whenever events or
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable from the estimated future
cash flows expected to result from its use and eventual disposition. When considered impaired, an impairment
loss is recognized to the extent carrying value exceeds the fair value of the asset. There were no indicators of
asset impairment during the year ended June 30, 2023.

Revenue and Revenue Recognition

Operating funds for the Organization are derived principally from state and federal sources. The Organization
receives state funding based on each of the enrolled student’s average daily attendance (ADA) in its school.
Contributions are recognized when cash or notification of an entitlement is received.

A portion of the Organization’s revenue is derived from cost-reimbursable federal and state contracts and
grants, which are conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or the incurrence of allowable
qualifying expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue when the Organization has incurred
expenditures in compliance with specific contract or grant provisions. Amounts received prior to incurring
qualifying expenditures are reported as refundable advances in the statement of financial position. At June 30,
2023, conditional contributions approximating $1,607,854, for which no amounts had been received in advance,
have not been recognized in the accompanying financial statements.

Donated Services and In-Kind Contributions

Volunteers contribute significant amounts of time to program services, administration, and fundraising and
development activities; however, the financial statements do not reflect the value of these contributed services
because they do not meet recognition criteria prescribed by generally accepted accounting principles.
Contributed goods are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. Donated professional services are
recorded at the respective fair values of the services received. No significant contributions of such goods or
services were received during the year ended June 30, 2023.

10



The Trivium Academy of Classical Education
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The financial statements report categories of expenses that are attributed to program service activities or
supporting services activities such as management and general activities and fundraising and development
activities. The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a functional basis in
the statement of activities. The statement of functional expenses present the natural classification detail of
expenses by function. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting
services benefited based on management’s estimates. The expenses that are allocated include occupancy, which
are allocated on a square footage basis, as well as salaries and wages, benefits, payroll and taxes, professional
services, office expenses, information technology, insurance, and other, which are allocated on the basis of
estimates of time and effort.

Income Taxes

The Organization is organized as a California nonprofit corporation and has been recognized by the Internal
Revenue Service {IRS) as exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code
as an organization described in Section 501(c){(3), and qualifies for the charitable contribution deduction. It is
also exempt from State franchise and income taxes under Section 23701(d) of the California Revenue and
Taxation Code. The Organization is annually required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax
(Form 990) with the IRS. In addition, the Organization is subject to income tax on net income that is derived
from business activities that are unrelated to its exempt purpose. The Organization determined that it is not
subject to unrelated business income tax and has not filed an Exempt Organization Business Income Tax Return
(Form 990-T) with the IRS.

Management believes that the Organization has appropriate support for any tax positions taken affecting its
annual filing requirements, and as such, does not have any uncertain tax positions that are material to the
financial statements. The Organization would recognize future accrued interest and penalties related to
unrecognized tax benefits and liabilities in income tax expense if such interest and penalties are incurred.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Financial Instruments and Credit Risk

Deposit concentration risk is managed by placing cash, money market accounts, and certificates of deposit with
financial institutions believed by management to be creditworthy. At times, amounts on deposit may exceed
insured limits or include uninsured investments in money market mutual funds. To date, no losses have been
experienced in any of these accounts. Credit risk associated with accounts receivable is considered to be limited
due to high historical collection rates and because substantial portions of the outstanding amounts are due from
governmental agencies supportive of the Organization’s mission.

11



The Trivium Academy of Classical Education
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

Change in Accounting Principle

Effective July 1, 2022, the Organization adopted the new lease accounting guidance in Accounting Standards
Update No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). The Organization elected to apply the guidance as of July 1, 2022, the
beginning of the adoption period. The standard requires the recognition of right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for lease contracts with terms greater than 12 months. Operating lease costs are recognized in the
statement of activities as a single lease cost and finance lease costs are recognized in two components, interest
expense and amortization expense. The Organization has elected the package of practical expedients permitted
in ASC Topic 842. Accordingly, the Organization accounted for its existing leases as either finance or operating
lease under the new guidance, without reassessing (a) whether the contract contains a lease under ASC Topic
842, (b} whether classification of the operating lease would be different in accordance with ASC Topic 842, or
{c) whether the unamortized initial direct costs before transition adjustments would have met the definition of
initial direct costs in ASC Topic 842 at lease commencement.

Note 2 - Liquidity and Availability

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions limiting their use,
within one year of the statement of financial position date, comprise the following:

Cash and cash equivalents S 2,831,348
Receivables 627,254
Total S 3,458,602

As part of the Organization’s liquidity management, it has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available
as its general expenditures, liabilities, and other obligations become due.

Note 3- Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consist of the following at June 30, 2023:

Computer and equipment S 97,144
Less accumulated depreciation (97,144)
Total ) -

12



The Trivium Academy of Classical Education
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

Note4 - Leases

The Organization leases certain real property for the operations of the charter school and equipment at various
terms under long-term non-cancelable operating lease agreements. The leases expire in 2027 and provide for
month-to-month renewal options {if the Charter fails to give Canon Financial Services 60 days prior written
notice of its intent to purchase or return equipment} or automatically renews or customer purchases
equipment. The Organization includes in the determination of the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities any
renewal options reasonably certain to be exercised. The Organization’s operating lease provides for increases in
future minimum annual rental payments.

The weighted-average discount rate is based on the discount rate implicit in the lease. If the implicit rate is not
readily determinable from the lease, the Organization estimates an applicable incremental borrowing rate. The
incremental borrowing rate is estimated using the Organization’s applicable borrowing rates and the contractual
lease term.

The Organization has elected the short-term lease exemption for all leases with a term of 12 months or less for
both existing and ongoing operating leases to not recognize the asset and liability for these leases. Lease
payments for short-term leases are recognized on straight-line basis.

The Organization elected the practical expedient to not separate lease and hon-lease components for real
property and equipment leases,

Total lease costs for the year ended June 30, 2023 were as follows:

Operating lease cost S 7,619
Short-term lease cost 357,755

The following table summarizes the supplemental cash flow information for the year ended June 30, 2023:

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities
Operating cash flows from operating leases S 7,659

Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for lease liabilities
Operating leases S 38,733

The following summarizes the weighted-average remaining lease term and weighted-average discount rate:

Weighted-average remaining lease term
Operating leases 4.1 Years

Weighted-average discount rate
Operating leases 4.00%

13



The Trivium Academy of Classical Education
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

The future minimum lease payments under noncancelable operating and finance leases with terms greater than
one year are listed below as of June 30, 2023:

June 30, 2023

Operating

2024 S 8,578
2025 8,579
2026 8,579
2027 8,579
2028 710

Total lease payments 35,025
Less interest (2,695)
Present value of lease liabilities S 32,330
Note5- Net Assets
Net assets consist of the following at June 30, 2023:
Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions

Designated for Classified School Employees Professional Development S 2,850

Undesignated net assets 1,573,397

Total net assets without donor restrictions S 1,576,247

Note 6 - Employee Retirement Systems

Qualified employees are covered under multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans maintained by
agencies of the State of California. Academic employees are members of the California State Teachers’
Retirement System (CalSTRS).

The details of the plan are as follows:

California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS)

Plan Description

The Organization contributes to the State Teachers Retirement Plan {(STRP) administered by the California State
Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS). STRP is a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement

system defined benefit pension plan. Benefit provisions are established by State statutes, as legislatively
amended, within the State Teachers’ Retirement Law.

14



The Trivium Academy of Classical Education
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

A full description of the pension plan regarding benefit provisions, assumptions (for funding, but not accounting
purposes), and membership information is listed in the June 30, 2021, annual actuarial valuation report, Defined
Benefit Program Actuarial Valuation. This report and CalSTRS audited financial information are publicly available
reports that can be found on the CalSTRS website under Publications at: http://www.calstrs.com/member-
publications.

Benefits Provided

The STRP provides retirement, disability and survivor benefits to beneficiaries. Benefits are based on members’
final compensation, age and years of service credit. Members hired on or before December 31, 2012, with

five years of credited service are eligible for the normal retirement benefit at age 60. Members hired on or after
January 1, 2013, with five years of credited service are eligible for the normal retirement benefit at age 62. The
normal retirement benefit is equal to 2.0% of final compensation for each year of credited service.

The STRP is comprised of four programs: Defined Benefit Program, Defined Benefit Supplement Program, Cash
Balance Benefit Program and Replacement Benefits Program. The STRP holds assets for the exclusive purpose of
providing benefits to members and beneficiaries of these programs. CalSTRS also uses plan assets to defray
reasonable expenses of administering the STRP. Although CalSTRS is the administrator of the STRP, the State is
the sponsor of the STRP and obligor of the trust. In addition, the State is both an employer and nonemployer
contributing entity to the STRP.

The Organization contributes exclusively to the STRP Defined Benefit Program; thus, disclosures are not included
for the other plans.

The STRP provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2023, are summarized as follows:

STRP Defined Benefit Program

On or before On or after
Hire date December 31, 2012 January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2% at 60 2% at 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service
Benefit payments Monthly for life Monthly for life
Retirement age 60 62
Monthly benefits as a percentage of eligible compensation 2.0%-2.4% 2.0%-2.4%
Required employee contribution rate 10.25% 10.205%
Required employer contribution rate 19.10% 19.10%
Required state contribution rate 10.828% 10.828%

15



The Trivium Academy of Classical Education
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

Contributions

Required member, the Organization, and State of California contributions rates are set by the California
Legislature and Governor and detailed in Teachers’ Retirement Law. The contribution rates are expressed as a
level percentage of payroll using the entry age normal actuarial method. In accordance with AB 1469, employer
contributions into the CalSTRS will be increasing to a total of 19.1% of applicable member earnings phased over
a seven-year period. The contribution rates for each plan for the year ended June 30, 2023, are presented
above, and the Organization’s total contributions were $1,266,451.

On Behalf Payments

The State of California makes contributions to CalSTRS on behalf of the Organization. These payments consist of
State General Fund contributions to CalSTRS in the amount of $394,539 (10.828% of annual payroll). Under
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these amounts are to be reported as
revenues and expenditures. Accordingly, these amounts have been recorded in these financial statements.

Note 7 - Contingencies, Risks, and Uncertainties

The Organization has received State and Federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit
by the grantor agencies. Although such audits could generate disallowances under terms of the grants, it is
believed that any reimbursement, if required, would not be material.

Note 8 - Subsequent Events

The Organization’s management has evaluated events or transactions that may occur for potential recognition
or disclosure in the financial statements through November 29, 2023, which is the date the financial statements

were available to be issued. Management has determined that there were no subsequent events or transactions
that would have a material impact on the current year financial statements.
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The Trivium Academy of Classical Education
Local Education Agency Organization Structure
June 30, 2023

ORGANIZATION

The Trivium Academy of Classical Education (the Organization) operates schools providing
homeschool/independent study instruction to students in grades kindergarten through twelve in California

under three charters. Charters were granted for each school for up to five years. As of June 30, 2023, the
Organization operated the following:

See Notes to Supplementary Information

Number of
Charter Charter Sponsoring Charter Grades Students
School Name Number Agency Expiration Served Served
Trivium Charter School 1319 Blochman Union June 30, 2025 K-12 317
Trivium Charter School: Voyage 1995 Blochman Union  June 30, 2025 K-12 291
Trivium Charter School: Adventure 1994 Blochman Union June 30, 2025 K-12 258
Governing Board
Member Office Term Expires
Annette Lawrence President June 30, 2026
Sarah Bruce Secretary June 30, 2025
Patricia Osaki Treasurer lune 30, 2024
Kimberly Pick Trustee June 30, 2024
Margaret Ogan Trustee June 30, 2024
Administration
Name Title
Trisha Vais Executive Director
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The Trivium Academy of Classical Education
Schedule of Average Daily Attendance
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Trivium Charter School

Regular ADA/Nonclassroom Based
Transitional kindergarten through third
Fourth through sixth
Seventh and eighth

Ninth through twelfth

Total regular ADA

Classroom Based ADA
Transitional kindergarten through third
Fifth and sixth
Seventh and eighth
Ninth through twelfth

Total classroom based ADA

The Charter School only operated a nonclassroom based program.

See Notes to Supplementary information

Second Period Annual
Report Report

114.10 113.61

82.73 82.68

52.39 51.29

58.28 56.55

307.50 304.13
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The Trivium Academy of Classical Education
Schedule of Average Daily Attendance
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Trivium Charter School: Voyage

Regular ADA/Nonclassroom Based
Transitional kindergarten through third
Fourth through sixth
Seventh and eighth

Ninth through twelfth

Total regular ADA

Classroom based ADA
Transitional kindergarten through third
Fifth and sixth
Seventh and eighth
Ninth through twelfth

Total classroom based ADA

The Charter School only operated a nonclassroom based program.

See Notes to Supplementary Information

Second Period Annual
Report Report

116.03 115.37

70.78 70.23

49.19 49.17

48.80 48.31

284.80 283.08
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The Trivium Academy of Classical Education
Schedule of Average Daily Attendance
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Trivium Charter School: Adventure

Regular ADA/Nonclassroom Based
Transitional kindergarten through third
Fourth through sixth
Seventh and eighth

Ninth through twelfth

Total regular ADA

Classroom based ADA
Transitional kindergarten through third
Fifth and sixth
Seventh and eighth
Ninth through twelfth

Total classroom based ADA

The Charter School only operated a nonclassroom based program.

See Notes to Supplementary Information

Second Period Annual
Report Report

80.69 81.49

56.42 56.29

53.70 53.82

54.16 52.96

244,97 244 .56

20



The Trivium Academy of Classical Education
Schedule of instructional Time
Year Ended June 30, 2023

California Education Code Section 47612.5 states this schedule does not apply to independent study programs;
accordingly, such schedule has not been presented.

See Notes to Supplementary Information 21



The Trivium Academy of Classical Education
Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget Report with Audited Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Summarized below are the net asset reconciliations between the Unaudited Actual Financial Report and the
audited financial statements.

Trivium Trivium
Trivium Charter School:  Charter School:
Charter School Voyage Adventure
Net Assets
Balance, June 30, 2023, Unaudited Actuals S 162,579 S 148,751 $ 129,392
Increase in

Intra-entity receivables 11,335 10,109 9,190
Operating lease liability, less current portion (38) (47) (57)

Balance, June 30, 2023, Audited Financial Statements  $ 173,876 S 158,813 S 138,525

See Notes to Supplementary Information 22



The Trivium Academy of Classical Education
Combining Statement of Financial Position
June 30, 2023

Trivium Trivium
Trivium Charter School: Charter School:
Charter School Voyage Adventure
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents S - S - S -
Receivables 220,515 207,920 194,453
Intra-entity receivable 446,028 320,108 249,987
Prepaid expenses 51,750 45,676 39,833
Total current assets 718,293 573,704 484,273
Non-current assets
Security deposits - 4,100 -
Operating lease right-of-use asset, net 12,301 10,682 9,387
Total non-current assets 12,301 14,782 9,387
Total assets S 730,594 S 588,486 S 493,660
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable S 36,366 S 42,743 S 39,381
Accrued liabilities - - -
Accrued compensated absences 14,239 12,700 11,545
Refundable advance 493,828 363,561 294,833
Intra-entity payable - - -
Current portion of operating lease liability 3,260 2,830 2,488
Total current liabilities 547,693 421,834 348,247
Long-term liabilities
Operating lease liability, less current portion 9,025 7,839 6,888
Total liabilities 556,718 429,673 355,135
Net Assets
Without donor restrictions 173,876 158,813 138,525
Total liabilities and net assets S 730,594 S 588,486 S 493,660

See Notes to Suppiementary Information 23



The Trivium Academy of Classical Education
Combining Statement of Financial Position
June 30, 2023

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Intra-entity receivable
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets
Non-current assets
Security deposits

Operating lease right-of-use asset, net

Total non-current assets
Total assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Accrued compensated absences
Refundable advance

Intra-entity payable
Current portion of operating lease liability
Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities
Operating lease liability, less current portion

Total liabilities

Net Assets
Without donor restrictions

Total liabilities and net assets

See Notes to Supplementary Information

Home Office
Network Eliminations Total
S 2,831,348 S - S 2,831,348
4,366 - 627,254
- (1,016,123) -
1,791 - 139,050
2,837,505 (1,016,123) 3,597,652
- - 4,100
- - 32,370
- - 36,470

S 2,837,505 S (1,016,123) S 3,634,122

$ 160,483 $ - $ 278,973
555,866 - 555,866

- - 38,484

- - 1,152,222

1,016,123 (1,016,123) -
8,578

1,732,472 (1,016,123) 2,034,123

- - 23,752

1,732,472 (1,016,123) 2,057,875
1,105,033 - 1,576,247

S 2,837,505 $ (1,016,123) S 3,634,122
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The Trivium Academy of Classical Education
Combining Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Trivium Trivium
Trivium Charter School: Charter School:
Charter School Voyage Adventure

Support and Revenues
Local Control Funding Formula S 3,251,574 S 2,975,009 S 2,587,835
Federal revenue 231,865 47,203 66,683
Other state revenue 580,607 560,737 477,903
Local revenues - - -
nterest income 4,020 3,615 3,239
Fundraising revenue 200 81 64
Total support and revenues 4,068,266 3,586,645 3,135,724

Expenses

Program services 3,536,951 3,131,279 2,747,855
Management and general 391,164 358,379 350,645
Total expenses 3,928,115 3,489,658 3,098,500
Change in Net Assets Before Intra-Entity Transfers 140,151 96,987 37,224
intra-Entity Transfers (111,535) (75,504) 624
Change in Net Assets 28,616 21,483 37,848
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 145,260 137,330 100,677
Net Assets, End of Year S 173,876 S 158,813 S 138,525

See Notes to Supplementary Information 25



The Trivium Academy of Classical Education

Combining Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Support and Revenues
Local Control Funding Formula
Federal revenue
Other state revenue
Local revenues
Interest income
Fundraising revenue
Total support and revenues
Expenses
Program services
Management and general
Total expenses
Change in Net Assets Before Intra-Entity Transfers
Intra-Entity Transfers
Change in Net Assets

Net Assets, Beginning of Year

Net Assets, End of Year

See Notes to Supplementary Information

Home Office
Network Total

S - 8,814,418
- 345,751

- 1,619,247

100,000 100,000

- 10,874

- 345

100,000 10,890,635

- 9,416,085

- 1,100,188

- 10,516,273

100,000 374,362
186,415 -
286,415 374,362
818,618 1,201,885

S 1,105,033 1,576,247
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The Trivium Academy of Classical Education

Notes to Supplementary Information
June 30, 2023

Note1- Purpose of Supplementary Schedules
Local Education Agency Organization Structure

This schedule provides information about the Organization’s operations, members of the governing board, and
members of the administration.

Schedule of Average Daily Attendance

Average daily attendance (ADA) is a measurement of the number of pupils attending classes of the Organization.
The purpose of attendance accounting from a fiscal standpoint is to provide the basis on which apportionments
of State funds are made to local education agencies. This schedule provides information regarding the
attendance of students at the Organization.

Schedule of Instructional Time

This schedule presents information on the amount of instructional time offered by the Organization and
whether the Organization complied with the provisions of Education Code Sections 47612 and 47612.5, if

applicable.

California Education Code Section 47612.5 states this schedule does not apply to independent study programs;
accordingly, such schedule has not been presented.

Reconciliation of Annual Financial Report with Audited Financial Statements

This schedule provides the information necessary to reconcile the net assets reported on the unaudited actual
financial report to the audited financial statements.

Combining Statement of Financial Position and Combining Statement of Activities
The combining statement of financial position and combining statement of activities are included to provide
information regarding the individual programs of the charter schools within the Organization and are presented

on the accrual basis of accounting. Eliminating entries in the combining statement of financial position and
combining statement of activities are for activities between each charter school.
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CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards

Governing Board
The Trivium Academy of Classical Education
Santa Maria, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of The Trivium
Academy of Classical Education {the Organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as
of June 30, 2023, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the
year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated November 29, 2023.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Organization’s
internal.control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the Organization’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

What inspires you, inspires vs. ~ eidebailly.com
10681 Foothill Blvd., Ste. 300 ~ Rancha Cucamonga, CA 91730-3831 T909.466.4410 F 909.466.4431 EQE
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization’s financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

GZ/M L7

Rancho Cucamonga, California
November 29, 2023
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CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditor’s Report on State Compliance

Governing Board
The Trivium Academy of Classical Education
Santa Maria, California

Report on Compliance
Opinion on State Compliance

We have audited The Trivium Academy of Classical Education’s (the Organization) compliance with the
requirements specified in the 2022-2023 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and
State Compliance Reporting, applicable to the Organization’s state program requirements identified
below for the year ended June 30, 2023.

In our opinion, the Organization complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements
referred to above that are applicable to the laws and regulations of the state programs noted in the
table below for the year ended June 30, 2023.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America {GAAS), the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the 2022-2023 Guide
for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. Our audit
does not provide a legal determination of the Organization’s compliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements
of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the
Organization’s state programs.

What inspires you, inspires us. eidebailly.com
10681 Foothill Blvd., Ste. 300~ Rancho Cucomonga, CA 91730-3831 T 909.466.4410  F 909.466.4431  EOE
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on the Organization’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the 2022-2023 Guide for Annual Audits of
K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting will always detect a material
noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material noncompliance resulting from fraud is
higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the
report on compliance about the Organization’s compliance with the requirements of the state programs
as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the 2022-2023
Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, we:

® Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ |{dentify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the Organization’s compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above and performing such other procedures as we consider necessary in the
circumstances.

¢ Obtain an understanding of the Organization’s internal control over compliance relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the 2022-2023 Guide for
Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal controls over
compliance. Accordingly, we express no such opinion; and

¢ Select and test transactions and records to determine the Organization’s compliance with the
state laws and regulations applicable to the following items:

Procedures
2022-2023 K-12 Audit Guide Procedures Performed
Local Education Agencies Other Than Charter Schools

Attendance No, see below
Teacher Certification and Misassignments No, see below
Kindergarten Continuance No, see below
Independent Study No, see below
Continuation Education No, see below
Instructional Time No, see below
Instructional Materials No, see below
Ratio of Administrative Employees to Teachers No, see below
Classroom Teacher Salaries No, see below
Early Retirement Incentive No, see below



2022-2023 K-12 Audit Guide Procedures

Procedures
Performed

GANN Limit Calculation

School Accountability Report Card

Juvenile Court Schools

Middle or Early College High Schools

K-3 Grade Span Adjustment

Transportation Maintenance of Effort

Apprenticeship: Related and Supplemental Instruction
Comprehensive School Safety Plan

District of Choice

Home to School Transportation

Independent Study Certification for ADA Loss Mitigation

School Districts, County Offices of Education, and Charter Schools
California Clean Energy Jobs Act
After/Before School Education and Safety Program:
Proper Expenditure of Education Protection Account Funds
Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts
Local Control and Accountability Plan
Independent Study-Course Based
Immunizations
Educator Effectiveness
Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant (ELO-G)
Career Technical Education Incentive Grant
Transitional Kindergarten

Charter Schools
Attendance
Mode of Instruction
Nonclassroom-Based Instruction/Independent Study
Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based Instruction
Annual Instructional Minutes — Classroom Based
Charter School Facility Grant Program

No, see below
No, see below
No, see below
No, see below
No, see below
No, see below
No, see below
No, see below
No, see below
No, see below
No, see below

No, see below
No, see below
Yes
Yes
Yes
No, see below
No, see below
Yes
No, see below
No, see below
No, see below

Yes
No, see below
Yes
Yes
No, see below
No, see below

Programs listed above for “Local Education Agencies Other Than Charter Schools” are not
applicable to charter schools; therefore, we did not perform any related procedures.

We did not perform California Clean Energy Jobs Act procedures because the Organization did

not receive funding for this program.

We did not perform procedures for the After/Before School Education and Safety Program

because the Organization did not offer the program.

The Organization does not offer an Independent Study-Course Based Program; therefore, we did

not perform any procedures related to the Independent Study-Course Based Program.



The Organization’s charter schools were not listed on the immunization assessment reports;
therefore, we did not perform any related procedures.

We did not perform ELO-G procedures because the Organization had no expenditures in the
current year,

We did not perform Career Technical Education Incentive Grant procedures because the
Organization did not receive funding for this grant.

The Organization does not offer a transitional kindergarten program; therefore, we did not
perform any procedures related to the transitional kindergarten program.

We did not perform procedures for Mode of Instruction nor for Annual Instructional Minutes —
Classroom Based because the Organization is entirely nonclassroom-based.

We did not perform procedures for the Charter School Facility Grant Program because the
Organization did not receive funding for this program.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance on a timely basis. A material
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material noncompliance with a
compliance requirement will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control over compliance that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention from those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designhed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal
control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
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The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 2022-2023 Guide
for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting. Accordingly, this
report is not suitable for any other purpose.

é;,zﬁdg Le7

Rancho Cucamonga, California
November 29, 2023
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The Trivium Academy of Classical Education
Summary of Auditor’s Results
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued
Internal control over financial reporting
Material weaknesses identified
Significant deficiencies identified not considered
to be material weaknesses

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

State Compliance

Internal contro!l over state compliance for programs
Material weaknesses identified
Significant deficiencies identified not considered
to be material weaknesses

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance
for programs

Unmodified

No
None Reported

No

No

None Reported

Unmodified
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The Trivium Academy of Classical Education
Financial Statement Findings
Year Ended June 30, 2023

None reported.
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The Trivium Academy of Classical Education
State Compliance Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2023

None reported.
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The Trivium Academy of Classical Education

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
Year Ended June 30, 2023

There were no audit findings reported in the prior year’s Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.
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BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
2024 GOVERNING BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE

BOARD MEETING LOCATION:

Benjamin Foxen Elementary School Library
4949 Foxen Canyon Rd., Santa Maria, CA 93454

MEETING DAYS: Second Tuesday of each month; no meeting in July

MEETING TIME: Open session 5:30 p.m.






Return completed original “wet” ink signature form to:
School Business Advisory Services

RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD
DELEGATION OF GOVERNING BOARD POWERS DUTIES
AUTHORITY TO MAKE CASH AND BUDGET TRANSFERS

Whereas, Education Code Section 35161 provides that “The governing board of any school district
may execute any powers delegated by law to it or to the district of which it is the governing board, and
shall discharge any duty imposed by law upon it or upon the district of which it is the governing
board...;” and

Whereas, Education Code Section 35161 further provides that the governing board “...may delegate
to an officer or employee of the district any of those powers or duties. The governing board, however,
retains ultimate responsibility over the performance of those powers or duties so delegated;” and

Whereas, the governing board of the Blochman Union School District

recognizes that, while the authority provided in Education Code Section 35161 authorizes the board to
delegate any of its powers and duties, the governing board retains the ultimate responsibility over the
performance of those powers and duties; and

Whereas, the governing board further recognizes that where other Education Code provisions
authorize a delegation of authority for a specific purpose, but impose restrictions on such delegated
authority, these restrictions must be observed;

Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved that, in accordance with the authority provided in Education Code
Section 35161, the governing board of the Blochman Union School District
hereby delegates to the following officers or employees of the district, the authority to make cash and
budget transfers between and within district funds as necessary for the payment of obligations of the
district effective from the date this resolution is passed through the year-end accrual phase without
submitting the transfers as part of a specific board resolution.

Doug Brown

Authorized District Employee/Officer Authorized District Employee/Officer
Nancy Shafer

Authorized District Employee/Officer Authorized District Employee/Officer
Passed and adopted this 12 th day of December , 2023 by the following vote:
Ayes:
Noes:
Absent:
Abstain:
Board President’s Signature: Date: / /

Note for Escape Financial System Users: The district must have an active employee with Escape access authorized to perform cash and
budget transfers. This resolution is needed in order to grant activity permissions necessary to authorize certain budget and cash transfers
(i.e., interfund cash transfers and deposits) in Escape.

REFERENCE:
K-12: EC§35161







4269112 Blochman i
Union Elem District Attendance/Membership Summary Report

t/End Date: 11/01/2023 - 11/30/ 1 dar(s): 2
4949 Foxen Canyon Rd., Santa Maria, CA 93454-9666 Start/End Date /OG do _35 6 73?3 2T°K23K 1SC;°3°'S) Calendar(s)
Generated on 12/01/2023 01:40:07 PM  Page 1 of 1 rade:>, 6,7, 6, TK K, 1, 2, 3,

SUMMARY Total Schools: 1 Total Calendars: 2

Student Membership Absent Present Unexcused Absences Percent In
Grade Count Days Days Days ADM ADA Days Avg. Daily Attendance
5 23 368 18 350 23.00 21.88 1 -0.06 95.11%

6 27 420 28 392 26.25 2450 10 0.63 93.33%
7 25 396 23 373 2475 23.31 5 0.31 94.19%
8 21 336 29 307 21.00 19.19 6 0.38 91.37%
TK 4 64 1 63 4.00 3.94 0 0.00 98.44%
K 19 304 15 289 19.00 18.06 1 0.06 95.07%
1 14 224 5 219 14.00 13.69 2 0.13 97.77%
2 24 384 13 371 24.00 23.19 4 0.25 96.61%
3 19 304 13 29 19.00 18.19 2 0.13 95.72%
4 22 340 19 321 21.25 20.06 6 0.38 94.41%
Total 10 198 3140 164 2976 196.25 186.01 37 2.33 94.78%

School: Benjamin Foxen School Calendar: 23-24 Blochman 5-8

Student Membership Absent Present Unexcused Absences Percent In
Grade Count Days Days Days ADM ADA Days Avg. Daily Attendance
5 23 368 18 350 23.00 21.88 1 0.06 95.11%
6 27 420 28 392 26.25 24.50 10 0.63 93.33%
7 25 396 23 373 2475 23.31 5 0.31 94.19%
8 21 336 29 307 21.00 19.19 6 0.38 91.37%
Total 4 926 1520 98 1422 95.00 88.88 22 1.38 93.55%

School: Benjamin Foxen School Calendar: 23-24 Blochman K-4

StudentMembership Absent Present Unexcused Absences Percent In

Grade Count Days Days Days ADM ADA Days Avg. Daily Attendance
TK 4 64 1 63 4.00 3.94 0 0.00 98.44%
K 19 304 15 289 19.00 18.06 1 0.06 95.07%
1 14 224 5 219 14.00 13.69 2 0.13 97.77%
2 24 384 13 371 24.00 23.19 4 0.25 96.61%
3 19 304 13 291 19.00 18.19 2 0.13 95.72%

4 22 340 19 321 21.25 20.06 6 038  94.4%
Total 6 102 1620 66 1554 101.25 97.13 15 0.95 95.93%
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Moss, Levy & Hartzheim LLP

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Trustees
Blochman Union School District
Santa Maria, California

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the Biochman Union School District, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Blochman Union School District's basic financial statements as listed in the table
of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Blochman Union School District, as of
June 30, 2023, and the respective changes in financial position thereof for the fiscal year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financiai audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General ofthe United States and
the 2022-2023 Guide for Annual Audits of Califomia K-12 Local Educational Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, prescribed by
Title 5, California Code of Regulations, Section 19810. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Blochman
Union School District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our
audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of intemal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

in preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Blochman Union School District’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve
months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly
thereafter.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards and Govemment Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resuiting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material
if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user
based on the financial statements.
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In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Govemment Auditing Standards, we:

» Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Blochman Union School District's
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

»  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt
about the Blochman Union School District’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require the budgetary information, the Schedule of
proportionate share of net pension liability, and the schedule of pension contributions, be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, aithough not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Management has omitted management's discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion
on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the Blochman Union
School District’s basic financial statements. The supplementary information listed in the table of contents is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The supplementary information listed in the table of contents is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. [n our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as
a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 28, 2023, on our consideration of -
the Blochman Union School District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal contro! over financial reporting and compliance and the resuits of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Govemment Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Vs, Kany & Bptghtcin, P

Santa Maria, California
November 28, 2023



BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2023

Assets

Cash in county treasury

Revoiving cash fund

Cash on hand and in banks

Accounts receivable

Right to use asset

Less accumulated amortization

Land

Work in progress

Buildings and improvements

Equipment

Less accumulated depreciation
Total assets

Deferred Qutflows of Resources
Pensions
Total deferred outflows of resources

Liabilities

Accounts payable

Due to grantor governments

Unearned revenue

Current portion of lease liability
Total due within one year

Long-term liabilities:
Net pension liability
Total due after one year

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Pensions
Total deferred inflows of resources

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted

Educational programs

Nutrition

Capital projects

Associated Student Body
Unrestricted

Total net position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Governmental
Activities

$ 5,035,405
500
39,015
526,771
26,793
(23,578)
40,517
435,485
1,324,638
480,483
(964,642)
6,921,387

855805
856895

426,560
30,356
53,172

9,131

519,219

2,082,763
2,082,763

2,601,982

346,858
346,858

1,310,565

334,524
131,208

7

36,775
3,015,363

$ 4,828,442



BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Governmental Activities:

Instruction

Instruction-related services:
Instructional supervision
Instructional library, media, and

technology

School site administration

Pupil services:
Homne - to - school transportation
Food services
All other pupil services

General administration;
All other general administration

Plant services

Ancillary services

Other outgo

Depreciation {unallocated)

Amortization (unallocated)

Total governmental activities

Net (Expense)
Revenue and

Changes in
Program Revenues Net Position
Operating
Charges for Grants and Governmental
Expenses Services Contributions Activities
$ 1,402,110 $ 332 $ 505,386 3 (896,392}
67,850 46,958 {20,892)
51,846 (51.846)
274,455 662 (273,793)
251,745 14,445 (237,300)
221,565 914 330,335 109,684
177,295 105,449 (71,846)
333,202 (333,202)
278,612 465 633 (277,514)
35,524 49,357 13,833
5,672 3,958 (1,614)
71,480 (71,480)
12,861 (12,861)
3 3,184,117 $ 2,373 $ 1,056,521 {2,125,223)
Taxes and subventions:
Taxes levied for general purposes 2,154,857
Federal and state aid not restricted to specific
purposes 11,814
Interest and investment loss 50,625
Interagency revenues 391,204
Miscellaneous 28,844
Total general revenues 2,637,344
Change in net position 512,121
Net position, beginning of fiscal year 4,316,321

Net position, end of fiscal year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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$ 4,828,442



BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2023

Other Total
General Governmental Governmental
Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS:
Cash in County Treasury $ 4,730,014 $ 253,691 4,983,705
Cash on Hand and in Banks 1,199 37,816 39,015
Cash in Revolving Fund 500 - 500
Accounts Receivable 489,273 36,421 525,694
Total Assets $ 5,220,986 $ 327,928 5,548,914
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $ 426,156 $ 404 426,560
Due to Grantor Governments 30,356 - 30,356
Deferred Revenue 53,172 - 53,172
Total Liabilities 509,684 404 510,088
Fund Balances:
Nonspendable 500 - 500
Restricted 396,311 106,203 502,514
Committed - 221,321 221,321
Unassigned 4,314,491 - 4,314,491
Total Fund Balances 4,711,302 327,524 5,038,826
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 5,220,986 $ 327,928 5,548,914

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.




BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2023

Total fund balances - governmental funds

in governmental funds, only current assets are reported. In the statement of net position,
all assets are reported, including capital assets and accumulated depreciation.

Capital assets at historical cost
Accumulated depreciation
Lease assets at historical cost
Accumulated amortization

Net

Long-term liabilities: in governmental funds, only current liabilities are reported. In the
statement of net position, all liabilities, including long-term liabilities, are reported.
Long-term liabilities relating to governmental activities consist of:

Net pension liability

Lease liability
Total

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to pensions: In governmental
funds, deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to pensions are not
reported because they are applicable to future periods. In the statement of net
position, deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to pensions are

reported,

Deferred inflows of resources relating to pensions

Deferred outflows of resources relating to pensions
Net

Internal service funds are used to charge the cost of services to the individual funds.
The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in the
governmental activities in the statement of net position.

Total net position - governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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$

$

$

2,281,123
(964,642)
26,793
(23,578)

(2,082,763)
(9,131)

(346,858)
855,895

$

$

5,038,826

1,319,696

(2,091,894)

509,037

52,777

4,828,442



BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Revenues:

LCFF Sources:
State Apportionment or State Aid
Education Protection Account Funds
Local Sources

Federal Revenue

Other State Revenue

Other Local Revenue
Total Revenues

Expenditures:

Current:
Instruction
Instruction - Related Services
Pupil Services
Ancillary Services
General Administration
Plant Services
Other Qutgo

Capital Outlay

Debt Service:
Principal

Total Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances, July 1
Fund Balances, June 30

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

Other Total
General Governmental Governmental

Fund Funds Funds
$ 1,875,547 - $ 1,875,547
201,430 - 201,430
52,608 - 52,608
176,366 101,826 278,192
685,499 97,905 783,404
576,980 49,779 626,759
3,568,430 249,510 3,817,940
1,460,595 1,460,595
400,128 - 400,128
482,811 178,455 661,266
9,462 26,063 35,625
338,540 - 338,540
276,871 13,283 290,154
5,572 - 5,672
185,764 75,155 260,919
8,462 - 8,462
3,168,205 292,956 3,461,161
400,225 (43,446) 356,779
4,311,077 370,970 4,682,047
$ 4,711,302 327,524 $ 5,038,826




BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL. DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF
REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities
the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is
the amount by which additions to capital assets of $257,230 is more than depreciation expense of
$(71,480) in the period.

Right to use assets are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over the length of the lease. This is the amount by which
additions to right to use assets of $0 is less than amortized expense of $(12,861).

The issuance of lease payable provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the
repayment of the principal of lease payable consumes the current financial resources of governmental
funds. Neither transaction has any effect on net position. The amount is the net effect of these differences
in the treatment of lease payable and related items.

Principal payments on lease payable 3 8,462

In governmental funds, pension costs are recognized when employer contributions are made. In the statement
of activities, pension costs are recognized on the accrual basis. This year, the difference between accruai-
basis pension costs and actual employer contributions was;

Internal service funds are used by the District to charge the costs of service to individual funds. The net

income of internal service funds is reported in governmental activities,

Changes in net position - governmental activities

The accempanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

¥

=

356,779

185,760

(12,861)

8,462

(27,483)

1,474

512,121



BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

JUNE 30, 2023

ASSETS:

Current Assets:

Cash in County Treasury

Accounts Receivable
Total Current Assets
Total Assets

LIABILITIES:
Total Liabilities

NET POSITION:
Unrestricted (Deficit)
Total Net Position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

Governmental
Activities

Internal Service

Fund

Self-Insurance

Fund

51,700
1,077
52,777

52,777

52,777

52,777



BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES
IN NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Governmental
Activities
Internal Service
Fund
Seif-Insurance
Fund

Operating Revenues:

Local Revenue $ 222,615
Total Revenues 222,615

Operating Expenses:

Services and other operating expenses 221,645
Total Expenses 221,645

Operating Income (loss) 970

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):

Interest Income 504
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 504
Change in Net Position 1,474

Total Net Position - Beginning 51,303

Total Net Position - Ending $ 52,777

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Governmental
Activities
Internal Service
Fund
Self-Insurance
Fund
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash received for services $ 221,735
Cash paid for services and other operating expenses (221,645)
Net cash used by operating activities 90
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
interest received 364
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 454
Cash and cash equivalents at July 1, 2022 51,246
Cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2023 5 51,700
Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities
Operating Income (loss) $ 970
(increase) Decrease in Operating Assets:
Accounts receivable (880)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 90

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A,

Accounting Policies

The District accounts for its financial transactions in accordance with policies and procedures of the Department of
Education's Califomia School Accounting Manual. The accounting policies of the District conform to accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Reporting Entity

The reporting entity is the Blochman Union School District. There are no component units included in this report which meet
the reporting entity definition criteria of GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, as amended by GASB
Statement No. 39, GASB Statement No. 61, GASB Statement No. 80 and GASB Statement No. 90.

Basis of Presentation

Govemment-wide Financial Statements:

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) report
information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the District.

The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. Government-
wide statements differs from the manner in which governmental fund financial statements are prepared. Governmental fund
financial statements, therefore, include a reconciliation, with brief explanations to better identify the relationship between the
government-wide financial statements and the statements for the governmental funds.

The government-wide financial statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program
revenues for each function or program of the District's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are
specifically associated with a service, program, or department and are therefore clearly identifiable to a particular function.
The District does not allocate indirect expenses to functions in the statement of activities. Program revenues include
charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by a program, as weli as grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues which are not classified as
program revenues are presented as general revenues of the District, with certain exceptions. The comparison of direct
expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each governmental function is seif-financing or draws from
the general revenues of the District.

Fund Financial Statements:

Fund financial statements report detailed information about the District. The focus of governmental fund financial
statements is on major funds rather than reporting funds by type. Each major governmental fund is presented in a separate
column, and all non-major funds are aggregated into one column.,

The accounting and financia! treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus. Ali governmental funds
are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only
current assets and current liabilities are generally included on the balance sheet. The Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing
sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary
fund’s principal ongoing operations. Operating expenses for the internal service fund includes the cost of insurance
premiums and claims related to self-insurance.

. Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial
statements. Government-wide financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Governmental
funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting. Proprietary funds also use the accrual basis of accounting.

12



BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D.

Basis of Accounting (Continued)

Revenues — exchange and non-exchange transactions:

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal value, is recorded
under the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On the modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal
year in which the resources are measurable and become available. “Available” means the resources will be collected within
the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current
fiscal year. For the District, “available” means collectible within the current period or within one year after fiscal year end.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly giving equal value in retum, include property
taxes, grants, and entitlements. Under the accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for
which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants and entitlements is recognized in the fiscal year in which ali eligibility
requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which specify the fiscal year when
the resources are to be used or the fiscal year when use is first permitied; matching requirements, in which the District must
provide local resources to be used for a specific purpose; and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are
provided to the District on a reimbursement basis. Under the modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange
transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.

Uneamed revenue:

Unearned revenue arises when assets are received before revenue recognition criteria have been satisfied. Grants and
entitlements received before eligibility requirements are met are recorded as uneamed revenue. On the govemmental fund
financial statements, receivables associated with non-exchange transactions that will not be coliected within the availability
period have also been recorded as unearned revenue.

Pensions:

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to pensions, and
pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Blochman Union School District's California Public
Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS) and California State Teachers' Retirement Plan (CalSTRS) and additions
to/deductions from the Plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by
CalPERS and CalSTRS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. investments are reported as fair value.

Expenses/expenditures:

On the accruatl basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time a liability is incurred. On the modified accrua! basis
of accounting, expenditures are generally recognized in the accounting period in which the retated fund liability is incurred,
as under the accrual basis of accounting. However, under the modified accrual basis of accounting, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditure related to compensated absences and claims and judgments are recorded only when
payment is due. Allocations of cost, such as depreciation and amortization, are not recognized in the governmental funds.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy to use restricted resources
first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Fund Accounting

The accounts of the District are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered to be a separate accounting
entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its
assets, liabilities, fund equity or retained earnings, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. The District's
resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent and
the means by which spending activities are controlled. The District's accounts are organized into major, nonmajor, and
proprietary funds as follows:
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BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

E.

Fund Accounting (Continued)

Major Govemmental Funds:

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the District. it is used to account for aif financial resources except those
required to be accounted for in another fund.

Nonmajor Govemmental Fund:

Special Revenue Funds are established to account for the proceeds from specific revenue sources (other than trusts,
major capital projects, or debt service) that are restricted or committed to the financing of activities and that compose a
substantial portion of the inflows of the fund. Additional resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned to the purpose
of the fund may also be reported in the fund. The District maintains three nonmajor special revenue funds:

1. The Associated Student Body Fund is used to account for the raising and expending of money fo promote the
general welfare, morale, and educational experience of the student body.

2. The Deferred Maintenance Fund is used for the purpose of major repair or replacement of the District's property.
3. The Cafeteria Fund is used for revenues and expenditures made to operate the District's cafeteria.

Capital Project Funds are used to account for the acquisitions and/or construction of all major govemmental capital assets.
The District maintains one nonmajor capital project fund:

The Capital Facilities Fund is used to account for resources received from developer impact fees assessed under the
provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).

Nonmajor Propnietary Fund:

Internal Service Funds are used to account for services rendered on a cost-reimbursement basis within the District. The
District maintains one internal service fund:

The Self-Insurance Fund is used to provide medical benefits to its employees.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America for ail governmental funds. By State law, the District's governing board must adopt a final budget no later than July
1. A public hearing must be conducted to receive comments prior to adoption. The District's governing board satisfied
these requirements.

These budgets are revised by the District's governing board and District Superintendent during the fiscai year to give
consideration to unanticipated income and expenditures.

Formal budgetary integration was employed as a management control device during the fiscal year for all budgeted funds.
The District employs budget control by minor object and by individual appropriation accounts. Expenditures cannot legaily
exceed appropriations by major object account.

Encumbrances
Encumbrance accounting is used in all budgeted funds to reserve portions of applicable appropriations for which
commitments have been made. Encumbrances are recorded for purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments when

they are written. Encumbrances are liquidated when the commitments are paid. All encumbrances are liquidated at June
30.
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BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

H. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, as prescribed by the GASB and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

3 Statement of Cash Flows

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the proprietary funds consider all highly liquid investments with a maturity
of three months or less when purchased, to be cash equivalents.

J. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Equity

Deposits and Investments

Cash balances held in banks and in revolving funds are insured up to $250,000 by the Federal Depository
Insurance Corporation. All cash held by the financial institutions is fully insured or collateralized.

In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the District maintains substantially all of its cash in the Santa
Barbara County Treasury. The County poois these funds with those of other districts in the County and invests the
cash. These pooled funds are carried at fair value. Interest earned is deposited quarterly into participating funds.
Any investment losses are proportionately shared by alt funds in the pool.

The County is authorized to deposit cash and invest excess funds by California Government Code Section 53648
et. seq.. The funds maintained by the County are either secured by federal depository insurance or are
collateralized.

Information regarding the amount of dollars invested in derivatives with the Santa Barbara County Treasury was
not available.

Receivables and Payables

Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of
the fiscal year are referred to as interfund receivables/payables.

Prepaid items

The District has the option of reporting an expenditure in governmental funds for prepaid items either when
purchased or during the benefiting period. The District has chosen to report the expenditure when incurred.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are those purchased or acquired with an original costs of $5,000 or more and are reported at
historical cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed capital assets are reported at fair value as of the date
received. Additions, improvements, and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of a capital
asset are capitalized. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the capital
assets or materially extend the capital assets’ lives are not capitalized, but are expensed as incurred.
Depreciation on all capital assets is computed using the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful
lives.
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BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

J. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred inflows, and Equity (Continued)
4. Capital Assets (Continued)
Asset Class Examples Estimated Usefui
Lifein Years

Land N/A

Site improvements Paving, flagpoles, retaining walls, 20
sidewalks, fencing, outdoor lighting

School buildings 50

Portable classrooms 25

HVAC systems Heating, ventilation, and air conditioning 20
systems

Roofing 20

Interior construction 25

Carpet replacement 7

Electrical/plumbing 30

Sprinkler/fire system Fire suppression system 25

Outdoor equipment Playground, radio towers, fuel tanks, 20
pumps

Machinery and tools Shop and maintenance equipment, tools 15

Kitchen equipment Appliances 15

Custodial equipment Floor scrubbers, vacuums, other 15

Science and engineering Lab equipment, scientific apparatus 10

Furniture and accessories Classroom and other fumiture 20

Business machines Fax, duplicating and printing equipment 10

Copiers 5

Communication equipment Mobile, portable radios, non- 10
computerized

Computer hardware PCs, printers, network hardware 5

Computer software Instructional, other short-term 510 10

Computer software Administrative long-term 10to 20

Audio visual equipment Projectors, cameras (still and digital) 10

Athletic equipment Gymnastics, football, weight machines, 10
wrestling mats

Musical instruments Pianos, strings, brass, percussion 10

Library books Collections 5t07

Licensed vehicles Buses, other on-road vehicles 8

Contractors equipment Major off-road vehicles, front-end 10
loaders, large tractors, mobile air
compressor

Grounds equipment Mowers, tractors, attachments 15

5. Unearned Revenue

Cash received for federal and state special projects and programs is recognized as revenue to the extent that
qualified expenditures have been incurred. Unearned revenue is recorded to the extent cash received on specific

projects and programs exceed qualified expenditures.

6. Compensated Absences

Accumulated unpaid employee vacation benefits are recognized as liabilities of the District. The liabilities are

recognized in the government-wide financial statements at fiscal year end.
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BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

J.

Assets, Deferred Qutfiows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Equity (Continued)

6.

Compensated Absences (Continued)

Accumulated employee sick leave benefits are not recognized as liabilities of the District. The District's policy is to
record sick leave as an operating expense in the period taken since such benefits do not vest nor is payment
probable; however, unused sick leave is added to the creditable service period for caiculation of retirement
benefits when the employee retires.

Deferred Qutflows and Inflows of Resources

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 63, “Financial Reporting of Deferred Cutflows of Resources, Deferred inflows of
Resources, and Net Position,” and GASB Statement No. 65, “Iitems Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities,”
the District recognizes deferred outflows and inflows of resources.

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows
of resources. A deferred outflow of resources is defined as a consumption of net position by the government that
is applicable to a future reporting period. The District has one item which qualify for reporting in this category;
refer to Note 7 for a detailed listing of the deferred outflows of resources the District has recognized.

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows
of resources. A deferred inflow of resources is defined as an acquisition of net position by the District that is
applicable to a future reporting period. The District has one item which qualify for reporting in this category; refer
to Note 7 for a detailed list of the deferred inflows of revenues the District has recognized.

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as
liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.

Fund Balances

Fund balances of the governmental funds are classified as follows:

Nonspendable Fund Balance ~ represents amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable
form (such as inventory or prepaid insurance) or legally required to remain intact (such as notes receivable or
principal of a permanent fund).

Restricted Fund Balance - represents amounts that are constrained by external parties, constitutional provisions
or enabling legislation.

Committed Fund Balance - represents amounts that can only be used for a specific purpose because of a format
action by the District's governing board. Commitied amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the
governing board removes those constraints by taking the same type of formal action. Committed fund balance
amounts may be used for other purposes with appropriate due process by the governing board. Commitments are
typicaily done through adoption and amendment of the budget. Committed fund balance amounts differ from
restricted balances in that the constraints on their use do not come from outside parties, constitutional provisions,
or enabling legislation.

Assigned Fund Balance - represents amounts which the District intends to use for a specific purpose, but that do
not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. Intent may be stipulated by the governing board or
by an official or body to which the governing board delegates the authority. Specific amounts that are not
restricted or committed in a special revenue, capital projects, debt service, or permanent fund are assigned for
purposes in accordance with the nature of their fund type or the fund's primary purpose. Assignments within the
general fund convey that the intended use of those amounts is for a specific purpose that is narrower than the
general purpose of the District.
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BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

J.

Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Equity (Continued)

9.

10.

1.

Fund Balances (Continued)

Unassigned Fund Balance — represents amounts which are unconstrained in that they may be spent for any
purpose. Only the general fund reports a positive unassigned fund balance. Other governmental funds might
report a negative batance in this classification because of overspending for specific purposes for which amounts
had been restricted, committed or assigned.

When an expenditure is incurred for a purpose for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available,
the District considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for which
committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available, the District considers amounts to have been
spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds.

Property Taxes

The County is responsible for assessing, collecting, and apportioning property taxes. Taxes are levied for each
fiscal year on taxable real and personal property in the county. The levy is based on the assessed values of the
preceding January 1, which is also the lien date. Property taxes on the secured rol! are due on November 1 and
February 1, and taxes become delinquent after December 10 and April 10, respectively. Property taxes on the
unsecured roll are due on the lien date (January1), and become delinquent if unpaid by August 31.

Secured property taxes are recorded as revenue when apportioned, in the fiscal year of the levy. The County
apportions secured property tax revenue in accordance with the alternate method of distribution prescribed by
Section 4705 of the California Revenue and Taxation Code. This alternate method provides for crediting each
applicable fund with its total secured taxes upon completion of the secured tax roll — approximately October 1 of
each year.

The County Auditor reports the amount of the District's allocated property tax revenue to the California Department
of Education. Pioperty taxes are recorded as local LCFF sources by the District.

Right to Use Assets

The District has recorded right to use lease assets as a result of implementing GASB Statement No. 87. The right
to use assets are initially measured at an amount equal to the initial measurement of the related lease liability plus
any lease payments made prior to the lease term, less lease incentives, and plus ancillary charges necessary to
place the lease into service. The right to use assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the life of the
related lease.

Future Accounting Pronouncements

GASB Statements listed below will be implemented in future financial statements:

StatementNo.99 "Omnibus 2022" The provisions of this statement are effective

in April 2022 except for the provisions related to
leases, PPPs, SBITAs, financial guarantees

and derivative instruments. The provisions related
to leases, PPPs, and SBITAs are effective for fiscal
years beginning after June 15, 2022. The provisions
related to financial guarantees and derivative
instruments are effective for fiscal years beginning
after June 15,2023.

Statement No. 100 "Accounting Changes and Error The provisions of this statement are effective

Corrections - an amendment of GASB for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2023.
StatementNo. 62"

Statement No. 101 "Compensated Absences" The provisions of this statement are effective

for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023.
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BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The District's cash and investments at June 30, 2023, consisted of the following:

Cash on hand and in banks $ 39,515
Cash and investments with the County Treasurer 5,035,405
Total cashin investments $ 5,074,920

Cash and investments are presented on the accompanying basic financial statements, as follows:

Cash in county treasury, statement of net position $ 5035405
Cash in revolving fund, statement of net position 500
Cash on hand and in banks, statement of net position 39,015

Total cash in investments $ 5,074,920

The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting
principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. These principles recognize
a three-tiered fair value hierarchy. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are
significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. The District did not have investments that are
measured under Level 1, Level 2, or Level 3.

Cash in County Treasury

In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the District maintains substantially all of its cash in the Santa Barbara County
Treasury as part of the common investment poot ($5,035,405 as of June 30, 2023). The fair value of this pooi as of that date, as
provided by the plan sponsor, was $5,035,405. The District is considered to be an involuntary participant in the external pool.
Interest is deposited in the participating funds.

The County is restricted by Government Code Section 53635, pursuant to Section 53601, to invest in time deposits, U.S. government
securities, State registered warrants, notes or bonds, State Treasurer's investment pool, bankers' acceptances, commercial paper,
negotiable certificates of deposit, and repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements.

Cash on Hand, in Banks, and in Revolving Fund

Cash balance on hand and in banks ($39,015 as of June 30, 2023) and in the revolving fund ($500) are insured up to $250,000 by
the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation. All cash held by the financial institution is fully insured or collateralized.

Investments Authorized by the District’s investment Policy

The District’s investment policy only authorizes investment in the local government investment pool administered by the County of
Santa Barbara. The District's investment policy does not contain any specific provisions intended to limit the District's exposure to
interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. Generally, the
longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. One of the ways
that the District manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer term investments
and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time as
necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations.
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NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
Disclosures Relating to interest Rate Risk (Continued)

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the District's investments to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the
following table that shows the distribution of the District's investments by maturity:

Remaining Maturity (in Months)

Carrying 12 Months 13-24 25-60 More than
Investment Type Amount Or Less Months Months 60 Months
Santa Barbara County
Investment Pool $ 5,035405 $ 5035405 $ - $ - $ -
Total $ 5,035,405 $ 5,035,405 $ - $ - $ -

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment. This is
measured by the assignment of rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. Presented below is the minimum
rating required by the California Government Code and the District's investment policy, and the actual rating as of fiscal year end for
each investment type.

Minimum Exempt
Carrying Legal From Rating as of Fiscal Year End
investment Type Amount Rating Disclosure AAA Aa Not Rated
Santa Barbara County
Investment Pool $ 5,035,405 NA 8 -3 - % - $ 5035405
Total $ 5,035,405 $ - $ - $ - $ 5035405

Concentration of Credit Risk

The investment policy of the District contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer beyond that
stipulated by the California Government Code. There are no investments in any one issuer that represent 5% or more of total
District's investments.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a government wili not be
able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The
California Government Code and the District's investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the
exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits, other than the following provision for deposits: The California Government Code
requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided
collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The fair value of the
pledged securities in the collateral pool must equai at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law
also allows financial institutions to secure the District's deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of
the secured public deposits.

None of the District's deposits with financial institutions in excess of federal depository insurance limits were held in uncollateralized
accounts.

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a
transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or coliateral secunties that are in the possession of
another party. The California Government Code and the District's investment policy do not contain lega! or policy requirements that
would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for investments. With respect to investments, custodial credit risk generally applies
only to direct investments in marketable securities. Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government's indirect investment in
securities through the use of mutual funds or government investment pools (such as Santa Barbara County Investment Pool).
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 3 - EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

Excess of expenditures over appropriations in individual funds, are as follows:

Excess
Fund Expenditures
Major Governmental Fund:
General Fund
Capital Outlay $ 122,501
Principal 8,462
NOTE 4 - RECEIVABLES
Receivables at June 30, 2023, consist of the following:
Other
General Governmental Proprietary
Fund Funds Fund
Federal Government:
Federal programs 3 63,860 3 16,995 $ -
State Government:
Categorical aid programs 4,179 17,881
Lottery 10,807
Local Sources:
Charter schools 391,204
Miscellaneous 880
Interest 19,223 1,645 197
Totals $ 489,273 $ 36,421 $ 1,077

NOTE § - RIGHT TO USE ASSET
Right to use asset activity for the District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, was as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1,2022 Additions Reductions  June 30,2023

Right to use assets

Leased portables $ 26793 - $ - $ 26,793
Total rightto use assets 26,793 26,793

Less accumulated amortization for:
Leased portables 10,717 12,861 23,578
Total accumulated amortization 10,717 12,861 23,578
Rightto use assets, net - $ 16,076 $ (12861) §% - 9 3,215

21
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 6 ~ CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION

Capital assets activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, is shown below:

Governmental Activities

Balance Balance
July 1, 2022 Additions Deductions June 30, 2023

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 40,517 $ - $ - $ 40,517

Work in progress 222,875 212,610 435,485
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 3 263,392 3 212,610 3 - $ 476,002
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements $ 1,324,638 $ - $ - $ 1,324,638

Equipment 435,863 44,620 480,483
Total capital assets, being depreciated 1,760,501 44,620 1,805,121
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements 571,682 45223 616,905

Equipment 321,480 26,257 347,737
Total accumulated depreciation 893,162 71,480 964,642
Total capital assets, being depreciated $ 867,339 $ (26,860) $ - $ 840479
Gowernmental activities, capital assets, net $ 1,130,731 $ 185,750 $ - $ 1,316,481
Governmental Activities:

Unallocated $ 71,480

Total depreciation expense $ 71,480

NOTE 7 - PENSION PLANS
State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS)
A. General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan Descriptions ~ All qualified California full-time and part-time public school teachers from pre-kindergarten through community
college and certain other employees of the public school system are eligible to participate in the CalSTRS Pension Plans, multiple-
employer, cost-sharing defined benefit plans administered by the California State Teacher's Retirement System (CalSTRS). Benefit
provisions under the Plans are established by the Teachers’ Retirement Law (California Education Code Section 22000 et seq), as
enacted and amended by the California Legislature. The benefit terms of the plans may be amended through legislation CalSTRS
issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and
membership information that can be found on the CalSTRS website.

Benefits Provided — The CALSTRS Defined Benefit Program has two benefit formulas:

CalSTRS 2% at 60: Members first hired on or before December 31, 2012, to perform services that could be creditable to CalSTRS
CalSTRS 2% at 62: Members first hired on or after January 1, 2013, to perform services that could be creditable to CalSTRS
The Defined Benefit Program provides retirement benefits based on members’ final compensation, age and years of service credit. in
addition, the retirement program provides benefits to members upon disability and to survivors/beneficiaries upon death of eligible
members.

After earning five years of credited service, members become 100 percent vested in retirement benefits.

After five years of credited service, a member (prior to age 60 if under Coverage A, no age limit if under Coverage B, as defined in
Education Code Sections 24001 and 24101, respectively) is eligible for disability benefits of up to 50.0 percent of final compensation

plus 10.0 percent of final compensation for each eligible child, up to a maximum addition of 40.0 percent. The member must have a
disability that will exceed a period of 12 or more months to qualify for benefit.
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JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 7 - PENSION PLANS (Continued)

State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) (Continued)

A. General Information about the Pension Plan (Continued)

Any compensation for service in excess of one year in a school year due to overtime or working additional assignments is credited to
the Defined Benefit Supplement Program so long as it is under the creditable compensation limit. Other compensation, such as
allowances, bonuses, cash in-lieu of fringe benefits, limited—period compensation or compensation determined to have been paid to
enhance a benefit, are not creditable to any CalSTRS benefit program.

The Plans' provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2023, are summarized as follows:

Prior to On or after
Hire Date January 1, 2013 January 1,2013
Benefit formula 2.0% @ 60 2.0% @62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years senvice
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50-63 55-65
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 2.0%t02.4% 2.00%
Required employee contributions rates 10.25% 10.205%
Required employer contribution rates 19.10% 19.10%
Required state contributions rates 10.828% 10.828%

Specific details for the retirement, disability or death benefit calculations for each of the pension plans are available in the
CalSTRS Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR). The CalSTRS’ ACFR is availabie online at
http://www.calstrs.com/comprehensive-annual-financial-report.

Contributions - Required member, employer and state contribution rates are set by the California Legislature and Governor and
detailed in Teachers' Retirement L.aw. Contribution rates are expressed as a level percentage of payroll using the entry age normal
actuarial cost method.

On-Behalf Payments - The District was the recipient of on-behalf payments made by the State of California to CalSTRS for K-12
education. These payments consist of state general fund contributions to CalSTRS.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the contributions recognized as part of pension expense was as follows:

Contribution-employer $ 149,270
Contribution-state 60,445
$ 209,715

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related toPensions

As of June 30, 2023, the District reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability that reflected a reduction for
State pension support provided to the District. The amount recognized by the District as its proportionate share of the net pension
liability, the related State support, and the total portion of the net pension liability that was associated with the District were as
follows:

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 1,032,609

State's proportionate share of the net pension liability
associated with the District 656,094
Total $ 1,688,703
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NOTE 7 - PENSION PLANS (Continued)

State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) (Continued)

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related toPensions (Continued)

The District's net pension liability is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability is
measured as of June 30, 2022, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liabiiity was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021 rolled forward to June 30, 2022 using standard update procedures. The District's proportion
of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of contributions to the pension pians relative to
the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2022, the District's proportion was
.0015%, which decreased by .0001 from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2021.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the District recognized pension expense of $127,192. At June 30, 2023, the District
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred inflows
of Resources of Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience $ 847 $ 77,409
Changes of assumptions 51,170

Net difference between projected and actual earning on pension
plan investments 50,527

Changes in proportion and differences between District

contributions and proportionate share of contributions 176,797 168,556
District contributions subsequentto the measurement date 172,992
Total $ 400,806 $ 296,492

$172,992 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be
recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ended June 30 Amount
2024 $ 8,815
2025 (40,454)
2026 (65,590)
2027 79,081
2028 (20,136)
2029 (30,394)

$ (68,678)
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BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 7 — PENSION PLANS (Continued)

State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) (Continued)

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related toPensions (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2021 actuarial valuations were determined using the
following actuarial assumptions:

Valuation Date June 30, 2021
Measurement Date June 30,2022
Actuarial Cost Method Entry age normal
Discount Rate 7.10%
Consumer Price inflation 2.75%

Wage Growth 3.50%
Post-retirement Benefit increases 2.00% simple for DB

Not applicable for DBS/CBB

CalSTRS uses custom mortality tables to best fit the patterns of mortality among its members. {n January 31, 2020, the CalSTRS’
retirement board changed the mortality assumptions based on the July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2018 Experience Analysis. The
projection scale was set to 110% of the ultimate improvement factor from the Mortality Improvement Scale (MP-2019) table, issued
by the Society of Actuaries. For further details, see CalSTRS July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2018 Experience Analysis on the
CalSTRS website.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-
estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class. The best-estimate ranges were developed using capital market assumptions from CalSTRS
general investment consuitant (Pension Consuiting Alliance ~ PCA) as an input to the process. Based on the model from CalSTRS
consulting actuary’s (Milliman) investment practice, a best estimate range was determined by assuming the portfolio is re-balanced
annually and that annual returns are normally distributed and independent from year to year to develop expected percentiles for the
tong-term distribution of annualized returns. The assumed asset allocation by PCA is based on board policy for target asset
allocation in effect on January 31, 2020, the date the current experience study was approved by the board. Best estimates of 10-year
geometric real rates of retum and the assumed asset allocation for each major asset class used as input to develop the actuarial
investment rate of return are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term*

Assumed Asset Expected Real

AssetClass Allocation Rate of Return
Global Equity 42 % 480 %
Private Equity 13 % 6.30 %
Real Estate 15 % 360 %
Inflation Sensitive 6 % 330 %
Fixed Income 12 % 130 %
Cash/Liquidity 2 % (0.40) %
Absolute Return 10 % 180 %

100 %

*10 year geometric average
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BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 7 - PENSION PLANS (Continued)

California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) (Continued)

A. General Information About the Pension Plan (Continued)

A family benefit is available if an active member dies and has at least one year of credited service.

Members' accumulated contributions are refundable with interest upon separation from CalPERS. The board determines the credited
i,:?é?ézitt ‘rate each fiscal year. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the rate of interest credited to members' accounts was 6
The member's benefit is reduced doliar for dollar, regardless of age, for the first 180 days after retirement if the member performs

activities in the public schools that could be creditable to CalPERS, unless the governing body of the school! district takes specified
actions with respect to a member who is above normal retirement age.

The Plans' provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2023 are summarized as follows:

Prior to On or after
Hire Date January 1,2013 January 1,2013
Benefit formula 2.0% @ 50 2.0% @62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years senice
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for tife
Retirement age 50-63 52-67
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 1.17% to 2.5% 1.00% to 2.5%
Required employee contributions rates 7% 7%
Required employer contribution rates 2537% 25.37%

Specific details for retirement, disability or death benefit calculations for each of the pension plans are available in the CalPERS’
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR). The CalPERS’ ACFR is available online at
https://www.calpers.ca.gov/page/forms-publications.

Contributions — Section 20814 (c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the employer contribution rates
for all public employees be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shali be effective on July 1 following notice of a change
in the rate. Funding contributions for both Plans are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The
actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the fiscal
year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The Local Government is required to contribute the
difference between the actuariaily determined rate of employees.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the contributions recognized as part of pension expense was as follow:

Contribution-employer $ 108,562
As of June 30, 2023, the District reported a net pension liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability of $1,050,154.

The District's net pension liability is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability is
measured as of June 30, 2022, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021 rolled forward to June 30, 2022 using standard update procedures. The District's proportion
of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plans relative to
the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2022, the District's proportion was
.0031%, which decreased by .0001% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2021.
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BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 7 ~ PENSION PLANS (Continued)

California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) (Continued)
A. General Information About the Pension Plan (Continued)
A family benefit is available if an active member dies and has at least one year of credited service.

Members' accumulated contributions are refundable with interest upon separation from CalPERS. The board determines the credited
interest rate each fiscal year. For the year ended June 30, 2023, the rate of interest credited to members' accounts was 6 percent.

The member's benefit is reduced dollar for dollar, regardless of age, for the first 180 days after retirement if the member performs
activities in the public schools that could be creditable to CalPERS, unless the governing body of the school district takes specified
actions with respect to a member who is above normal retirement age.

The Plans' provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2023 are summarized as follows:

Prior to On or after
Hire Date January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2.0% @ 50 20% @62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50-63 52-67
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 1.17% to 2.5% 1.00% to 2.5%
Required employee contributions rates 7% 7%
Required employer contribution rates 25.37% 25.37%

Specific details for retirement, disability or death benefit calcutations for each of the pension plans are available in the CalPERS’
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR). The CalPERS' ACFR is available online at
https://www.calpers.ca.gov/page/forms-publications.

Contributions ~ Section 20814 (c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the employer contribution rates
for all public employees be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on July 1 following notice of a change
in the rate. Funding contributions for both Plans are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The
actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year,
with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The Local Government is required to contribute the difference
between the actuarially determined rate of employees.

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the contributions recognized as part of pension expense was as follow:

Contribution-employer $ 108,562
As of June 30, 2023, the District reported a net pension liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability of $1,050,154,

The District's net pension liability is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability is
measured as of June 30, 2022, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021 rolled forward to June 30, 2022 using standard update procedures. The District's proportion
of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District's fong-term share of contributions to the pension plans relative to
the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2022, the District's proportion was
.0031%, which decreased by .0001% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2021.
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BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 7 — PENSION PLANS (Continued)

California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) (Continued)

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources Related toPensions
(Continued)

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the District recognized pension expense of $194,860. At June 30, 2023, the District
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outfiows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience $ 4,746 $ 26,129
Changes of assumptions 77,684
Net difference between projected and actual earning on pension
plan investments 123,994
Changes in proportion and differences between District
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 88,409 24,237
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 160,256
Tota! $ 455,089 $ 50,366

$160,256 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be
recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ended June 30 Amount
2024 $ 82,912
2025 67,731
2026 18,218
2027 75,606

$ 244,467
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BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 7 - PENSION PLANS (Continued)

California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) (Continued)

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
(Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions —The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2021 actuarial valuations were determined using the
following actuarial assumptions:

Valuation Date June 30, 2021

Measurement Date June 30, 2022

Actuarial Cost Method Entry age normal

Discount Rate 6.90%

Consumer Price Inflation 2.30%

Wage Growth Varies

Post-retirement Benefit Increases Up to 2.00% until purchasing power protection

Allowance flows purchasing power applies,
2.30% thereafter
Change in Assumptions

For the measurement date of June 30, 2022, the discount rate was lowered from 7.15% to 6.90% and the inflation rate was
decreased from 2.50% to 2.30%.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.90 percent. To determine whether the municipal bond rate should
be used in the calculation of the discount rate for public agency plans (including PERF B), CalPERS stress tested plans that would
most likely result in a discount rate that would be different from the actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on testing the plans,
the tests revealed the assets would not run out. Therefore, the current 6.90 percent discount rate is appropriate and the use of
municipal bond rate calculation is not deemed necessary. The long-term expected discount rate of 6.90 percent is applied to afl
plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund, including PERF B. The stress test results are presented in a detailed report called
“GASB Crossover Testing Report” that can be obtained at CalPERS' website under the GASB No. 68 section.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension pian investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-
estimated ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account long-term market return expectations as well as the
expected pension fund cash flows. Projected returns for all asset classes are estimated and, combined with risk estimates, are used
to project compound (geometric) returns over the long term. The discount rate used to discount liabiities was informed by the long-
term project portfolio return.
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BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 7 - PENSION PLANS (Continued)

California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) (Continued)

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources Related toPensions
(Continued)

The expected real rates of return by asset class are as followed:

New Expected Real
Strategic Rate of Return
Asset Class Allocation Years 1-10(a)(b)
Global Equity - cap weighted 30% 4.45%
Global Equity non-cap-weighted 12% 3.84%
Private Equity 13% 7.28%
Treasury 5% 027%
Mortgage-backed Securities 5% 0.50%
Investment Grade Corporates 10% 1.56%
High Yield 5% 227%
Emerging Market Debt 5% 2.48%
Private Debt 5% 357%
Real Assets 15% 321%
Leverage -5% -0.59%
Total 100.0%

(a) An expected inflation of 2.30% was used for this period
(b) Figures are based on the 2021-22 Asset Liability Management study.

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the DiscountRate — The following
presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability, calculated using the discount rate, as well as what the District’s
proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1
percentage point higher than the current rate:

1% Decrease 5.90%
Net Pension Liability $ 1,517,002
Current Discount Rate 6.90%
Net Pension Liability $ 1,050,154
1% Increase 7.90%
Net Pension Liability 3 664,323

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position — Detailed information about pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the
separately issued CalPERS financial reports.

C. Payable to the Pension Plan

At June 30, 2023, the District had no amount outstanding for contributions to the pension plan required for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2023.
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BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 8 - LEASE LIABILITY

On March 26, 2021, the District agreed to terms to lease 2 classroom portables commencing September 1, 2021 and ending on
August 31, 2024 for an annual payment of $3,200 on September 1 of each year of the lease. The lease liability is measured at a
discount rale of 3%, which is the US Treasury bill interest rate. As a result of the lease, the District has recorded aright to use asset
of $26,793.

The future minimum lease obligation and the net present value of these minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2023, were as
follows:

Year Ending Principal Interest
June 30 Payments Payments Total
2024 $ 9,131 $ 69 $ 9,200
$ 9131 $ 69 $ 9200

NOTE 9 ~LONG-TERM LIABILITIES — SCHEDULE OF CHANGES

A schedule of changes in long-term liabilities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, is shown below:

Balance Balance Due Within

June 30, 2022 Additions Deletions June 30, 2023 One Year
Net pension liability $ 1,383,715 $ 699,048 $ - $ 2,082,763 $ -
Lease liability 17,593 8,462 9,131 9,131

$ 1,401,308 $ 699,048 3 8,462 $ 2,091,894 $ 9,131

NOTE 10 ~ NET POSITION

The government-wide, proprietary funds, and fiduciary fund financial statements utilize a net position presentation. Net position is
categorized as net investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted.

Net Investment In Capital Assets — This category groups all capital assets, including infrastructure, into one component of net
position. Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balances of debt that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of these assets reduces the balance in this category.

Restricted Net Position — This category presents external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted Net Position — This category represents net position of the District, not restricted for any project or other purpose.
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BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 11 -~FUND BALANCES

Fund balances are composed of the following elements:

Other Total
General Governmental Governmental
Fund Funds Funds
Nonspendable
Rewolving cash $ 500 % - $ 500
Restricted
Expanded Learning Opportunities Program 72,181 72,181
Educator Effectiveness 5,189 5,189
Special Education 19,211 19,211
Child nutrition 61,787 69,421 131,208
Classified School Employee Professional Development Block Grant 471 471
Arts, Music, and Instructional Materials Discretionary Block Grant 55611 55611
Learning Recovery Emergency Block Grant 180,451 180,451
Other local 1,410 1410
Capital projects 7 7
Associated Student Body 36,775 36,775
Committed
Modernization 221321 221,321
Unassigned 4,314,491 4,314,491
Total $ 4711302 § 327,524 $ 5,038,826

NOTE 12 - JOINT VENTURES (Joint Powers Agreements)

The Blochman Union School District participates in three joint ventures under joint powers agreements (JPA's); the Self-Insurance
Program for Employees, the Self-insured Schools of California i, and the Self-insured Schools of California iii. The relationship
between the Blochman Union School District and the JPA's are such that none of the JPAs are a component unit of the Blochman
Union School District for financial reporting purposes.

The JPAs are independently accountable for their fiscal matters. The insurance groups maintain their own accounting records.
Budgets are not subject to any approval other than of the respective governing boards. Member districts share surpluses and deficits
proportionately to their participation in the JPA.

Self-Insurance Program for Employees {S.1.P.E.)

S.1.P.E. was established to provide the services and other items necessary and appropriate for the development, operation, and
maintenance of a self-insurance system for workers' compensation claims against the public educational agencies who are members
thereof. The participants consist of the Office of the County Superintendent of Schools, school districts, and a community college.
Each participant may appoint one representative to the governing board. The governing board is responsible for establishing
premium rates and making budgeting decisions.

The Self-insured Schools of California Ii (S.1.S.C. i)

$.1.8.C. Harranges for and provides property and liability insurance for its member school districts. The Blochman Union School
District pays a premium commensurate with the level of coverage requested.

The Self-insured Schools of California lll {S..S.C. lil)

S.1.8.C il arranges for and provides health and welfare insurance for its member school districts. The Blochman Union School
District pays a premium commensurate with the level of health and welfare insurance provided.
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BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
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JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 13 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

State and Federal Allowances, Awards, and Grants

The District has received state and federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by the grantor agencies.
Although such audits could generate expenditure disallowances under terms of the grants, it is believed that any required
reimbursements will not be material.

Litigation

According to the District's staff and attorney, no contingent liabilities are outstanding and no lawsuits are pending of any real financial
consequence.

NOTE 14 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The District offers no postemployment benefits other than pension benefits.
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BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
LCFF Sources:
State Apportionment or State Aid $ 1,389,789 $ 1875547 $ 1875547 $
Education Protection Account Funds 507,474 201,430 201,430
.. Local Sources - 269,264 52,608 52,608
Federal Revenue 99,134 176,366 176,366 -
Other State Revenue 376,136 685,499 685,499 -
Other Local Revenue 129,688 576,980 576,980 -
Total Revenues 2,771,485 3,568,430 3,568,430
Expenditures:
Current:
Certificated Salaries 1,019,191 1,073,413 1,073,413 -
Classified Salaries 440,451 485,899 485,899 -
Employee Benefits 630,160 645,768 645,768 -
Books And Supplies 204,850 217,976 191,155 26,821
Services And Other Operating Expenditures 574,825 580,635 572,172 8,463
Other Outgo . 14,491 5,572 5,572 -
Capital Qutlay - 63,263 185,764 (122,501)
Debt Service:
Principal ) - - 8,462 (8,462)
Total Expenditures 2,883,968 3,072,526 3,168,205 (95,679)
Net Change in Fund Balance (112,483) 495,904 400,225 (85,679)
Fund Balance, July 1 4,311,077 4,311,077 4,311,077 -
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 4198594 $ 4806981 $ 4711302 $ (95,679)
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BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY

Last 10 Years*
As of June 30, 2023

The following table provides required supplementary information regarding the District's CALPERS Pension Plan.

Proportion of the naet pension liability
Proportionate share of the net pension liability
Covered payroil

Proportionate share of the net pension liability as
percentage of covered payroll

Plan's total pension liability
Plan's fiduciary net position

Plan fiduciary net position as a parcentage of the
total pension lability

Proportion of the net pension liability
Proportionate share of the net pension liability
Covered payroll

Proportionate share of the net pension liability as
percentage of covered payrolt

Plan's lotal pension ability
Plan's fiduciary net position

Flan fiduciary et position as a percentage of the
total pension liability

*- Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only nine years are shown.

Notes {o Schedule

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
0031 % .0032 % .0026 % .0025 % 0021 %
$ 1,050,154 843,679 803,054 727,169 565,659
3 469,555 454,821 376,386 345,632 278,776
223.65 % 14152 % 213.36 % 210.39 % 202.15 %
$  113,794,594,060 106,857,487.803 102,288,672,089 97,300,991,939 91,459,283,785
$ 79.385.508,859 88,523,055,655 71.606.596,106 68,156,740,817 64,796,135,561
68.76 % 80.97 % 70.00 % 70.05 % 70.85 %
2018 2017 2016 2016
0020 % .0022 % 0016 % .0020 %
$ 470,608 435,080 233,403 228,009
3 251,382 241,394 175,304 201,897
187.21 % 180.24 % 133.14 % 11293 %
$ 84,871,025,628 75.,663,026,434 71,661,164,353 68,292,799.348
$ 60.998,386,333 55,912,964,588 56.911,065,643 56,940,364,500
7187 % 73.80 % 7943 % 83.38 %

For fiscal year ending June 30, 2023, the discount rate was lowered from 7.15% to 6.90% and the inflation rate was decreased from 2.50% to 2.30%.
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BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY

Last 10 Years*
As of June 30, 2023

The foliowing table provides required supplementary information regarding the Districts CALSTRS Pension Plen.

Proporlion of the net pension liabifity
Proporlionate share of the net pension liability

Stata's propoitionate share of net pension labliity
associated with the District

Total
Covered payrolt

Proporlionate share of tha net pension liability as
percentage of covered payroll

Plan's total pension liability
Plan's fiduciary net position.

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
total pension liability

Proportion of the net pension liability
Proportionate share of the nst pension liability

State's propcriionate share of net pension liability
associated with the District

Total
Coveured payroll

Proportionate share of the net pension liability as
percentage of covered payroll

Plan's total pension liabitity
Plan's fiduclary net position

Plan fiduciary net position 3s a percantage of the
tctal pension liability

*- Fiscai year 2015 was the 1sl. year of imptementation, therefere only nine years are shown.

Notgs to Schedule

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
.0015 % 0016 % .0015 % 0014 % 0013 %
1.032,609 $ 740,036 $ 1,451,992 1,263,305 $ 1,226,082
656,094 375,779 951,730 1,155,108 685,910
1,688,703 3 1115815 $ 2,403,722 2418413 $ 1,911,992
862,210 $ 870,966 $ 807,444 760,154 $ 709,245
117.05 % 84.97 % 179.83 % 166.19 % 172.87 %
369,543,996,000 $  355,802,665,000 $  343,894,793,000 329,173.470,000 $ 316,777.450,000
309,056,284,995 §  310,283.452,995 $  246,983,743,955 238,861,887,995 $ 224,868,634,995
8120 % 87.21 % 7182 % 72.56 % 7099 %
2018 2017 2016 2016
0013 % .0013 % .0014 % 0010 %
1,191,561 $ 1,075,461 3 931,530 559,341
729,279 623,799 492,668 448,944
1,920,840 $ 1,699,260 $ 1,424,198 1,008,285
675,906 $ 671,401 $ 612,905 . 578,776
176.28 % 160.16 % 145.05 % 96.64 %
302,770,148,000 $  289,994,690,000 $§ 259,146,248,000 248,910,844.000
210,289,899,995 $  189,113,486,995 $ 191,822,335,995 190,474,018,000
69.46 % 70.04 % 74.02 % 7€.52 %

There wers no changes in assumption for the fiscal year ended June 20, 2023.
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BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS

Last 10 Years®

As of June 30, 2023

The foliowing table provides required supplementary information regarding the District's CALPERS Pension Plan.

Cortractually required contribution (actuanally determined)
Contribution in relation to the actuarially determined
contributions

Contribution deficiency (excess)

Covered payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll

Contractually required contribution {actuarially determined)
Contribution in relation to the actuanaily dotermined
contributions

Cantribution deficiency (excess)

Covered payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroit

Notes to Schedule

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
160256 §  107.575 94148 § 74227 § 62428
(160.256) (107,575) (94,148) (74.227) (62.428)

- 3 - 3 -3 - -
631676 § 469555 § 454821 § 376,386 § 345632
25.370 % 22.910 % 20700 % 19.721 % 18.062 %
2018 2017 2016 2015
43452 § 34912 28598 § 20635
(43,452) (34.812) (26,598) (20,635)
- 3 - 3 - 3 -
279776 3 251382 § 241,384 § 175304
15.531 % 13.888 % 11.847 % 1771 %

Trere were no changes in assumption for the ficcal year ended June 30, 2023.

*- Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only nine years are shown.
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BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT -
SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS

Last 10 Yoars*

As of June 30, 2023

The following table provides required supplementary information regarding the District's CALSTRS Pension Plan.

Contractually required contribution (actuarially determined)
Contribution in relation to the actuarially determiried
contributions

Contribution deficiency (axcess)

Covered payroll

Contributions as a perccntagé of coveréd payroll

Contractually required contribution (actuarially determined)
Centribution in relation to the actuarially determined
contributions

Contribution deficiency (excess)

Covered payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered payrall

Hotes to Schedule

2023 2022 2021 2020
172,982 $ 149,270 $ 140,661 $ 138,073 123,753
(172,992) (149,270) (140,661) (138,073) (123,753)
- 3 - 3 - 3 - -
905,717 $ 882,210 3 870,965 $ 807 444 760,154
19.10 % 16.92 % 16.15 % 17.10 % 16.28 %
2018 2017 2018 2015
104,344 $ 85,029 3 72,051 $ 54,426
(104,344) (85,029) (72,051) (54,426)
- $ - $ - $ R
709,245 $ 675,906 $ 671,491 $ 612,905
14.71 % 12.58 % 10.73 % 8.88 %

There were no changes in assurnption for the fiscat year ended June 30, 2023.

*- Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of impiementation, therefore only nine years are shown.
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BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2023

Capital
Projects
Fund
Total
Special Capital Nonmajor
Revenue Facilities Governmental
Funds Fund Funds
ASSETS:
Cash in County Treasury $ 253,684 $ 7 253,691
Cash on Hand and in Banks 37,816 - 37,816
Accounts Receivable 36,421 - 36,421
Totai Assets . $ 327,921 $ 7 327,928
LIABILITIES AND FUMD BALANGCES:
Liabiiities:

Accounts Payable $ 404 $ 404
Total Liabilities 404 404
Fund Balances:

Restricted 106,196 7 106,203

Cornmitted 221,321 - 221,321

Total Fund Balances 327,517 7 327,524
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 327,921 $ 7 327,928
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BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOP. GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Capital
Projects
Fund
Total
Special Capital Nonmajor
Revenue Facilities Governmental
Funds Fund Funds

Revenues:

Federal Revenue $ 101,826 $ - $ 101,826

Other State Revenue 97,905 - 97,905

Other Local Ravenue . : 48,310 1,469 49,779

Total Revenues ' 248,041 1,469 249,510

Expenditures:
Current:

Pupil Services 178,455 - 178,455

Ancillary Services 26,063 - 26,063

Plant Services 11,820 1,463 13,283
Capital Outlay 75,155 - 75,155

Total Expenditures 291,493 1,463 292,956

Net Change in Fund Balances (43,452) 6 (43,446)
Fund Balances, July 1 370,969 1 370,970
Fund Balances, June 30 $ 327,517 $ 7 $ 327,524
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BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2023

Total
Nonmajor
Associated Deferred Special
Student Body Cafeteria Maintenance Revenue
Fund Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS:
Cash in County Treasury $ - 8 33,700 % 219,984 $ 253,684
Cash on Hand and in Banks . 35,775 1,041 - 37,816
Accounts Receivable - 35,084 1,337 36,421
Total Assets $ 36,775 § 69,825 $ 221321 $ 327,921
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities: :

Accounts Payable $ - $ 404 $ - $ 404
Total Liabilities - 404 - 404
Fund Balances:

Restricted 36,775 69,421 - 106,196

Committed - - 221,321 221,321

Total Fund Balances 36,775 69,421 221,321 327,517

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 36,775 $ 69,825 $ 221321 $ 327,921
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BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Total
Nonmajor
Associated Deterred Special
Student Body Cafeteria Maintenance Revenue
Fund Fund Fund Funds

Revenues:

Federal Revenue $ - % 101,826 § - % 101,826

Other State Revenue - 97,905 - 97,905

Othar Local Revenue 39,574 1,405 7.331 48,310

Total Revenues 39,574 201,136 7,331 248,041

Expenditures:
Current:

Pupil Services - 178,455 178,455

Ancillary Services 26,063 - - 26,063

Piant Services - 11,820 11,820
Capital Outlay - - 75,155 75,155

Total Expenditures 26,063 178,455 86,975 291,493
Net Change in Fund Balances 13,511 22,681 (79,644) (43,452)
Fund Balances, July 1 23,264 46,740 300,965 370,869
69421 § 221,321 % 327,517

Fund Balances, June 30 $ 36,775 $
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BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL. DISTRICT
ASSOCIATED STUDENT BODY FUND

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Other Local Revenue $ 39,574 $ 39,574 $
Total Revenues 39,574 39,574
Expenditures:
Current:
Books And Supplies 26,063 26,063
Total Expenditures 26,063 26,063
Net Change in Fund Balance 13,511 13,511
Fund Balance, July 1 23,264 23,264
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 36,775 $ 36,775 $
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BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAFETERIA FUND

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Revenues:
Federal Revenue
Other State Revenue
Other Local Revenue
Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current;
. Classified Salaries
Employee Benefits
Books And Supplies
Services And Other Operating Expenditures
Total Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance, July 1
Fund Balance, June 30

Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 101,826 101,826
97,905 97,905
1,405 1,405
201,136 201,136
54,878 54,878
19,604 19,604
95,700 95,700
8,273 8,273
178,455 178,455
22,681 22,681
46,740 46,740
$ 69,421 69,421
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BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL. DISTRICT
DEFERRED MAINTENANCE FUND

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Revenues:
Other Local Revenue
Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Services And Other Operating Expenditures
Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance, July 1
Fund Balance, June 30

Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 7,331 $ 7,331 3
7,331 7,331
11,820 11,820
75,155 75,155
86,975 86,975
{79,644) (79,644)
300,965 300,965
$ 221,321 $ 221,321 3
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BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL FACILITIES FUND

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Revenues:
Other Local Revenue
Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Services And Other Operating Expenditures
Total Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance, July 1
fund Balance, June 30
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Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

1,469 1,469
1,469 1,469
1,463 1,463
1,463 1,463
6 6
1 1
7 7




BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
ORGANIZATION
JUNE 30, 2023

The Blochman Union School District was established around 1883, and is located within Santa Barbara County. There were no
changes in the boundaries of the District during the current fiscal year. The District currently operates one elementary for grades
kindergarten through eighth.

GOVERNING BOARD

Name Office Term Expires
Shannon Clay President 2022
Kelly Salas-Ernst Clerk 2024
Tom Gibbons Member 2022
Daniella Pearce Member 2024
Jeania Reasner Member 2024

ADMINISTRATION

Doug Brown
Superintendent/Principal
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BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Second
Period Annual
Repon___ Report
Elementary
Kindergarten through third 72.33 72.04
Fourth through sixth 5§7.00 56.90
Seventh and eighth 37.68 37.52
167.01 166.46

Average daily attendance is a measurernent of the number of pupils attending classes of the District. The purpose of attendance
accounting from a fiscal standpoint is to provide the basis on which apportionments of State funds are made to school districts. This
schedule provides information regarding the attendance of students at various grade levels and in different programs.

There were no audit findings which resulted in necessary revisions to attendance.
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BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME
~OR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Ed. Code Actual Number
46297 2022-23 J-13 Total of days J-13
Grade Minutes Actual Credited 2022-23 Traditional Credited Total
Lewel Requirement Minutes Minutes Minutes Calendar Days Days Status
Kindergarten 36,000 56,630 670 57,300 178 2 180 In compliance
Grade 1 50,400 53,960 640 54,600 178 2 180 in compliance
Grade 2 50,400 53,960 640 54,600 178 2 180 In compliance
Grade 3 50,400 53,960 640 54,600 178 2 180 In compliance
Grade 4 54,000 53,960 840 54,600 178 2 180 In compliance
Grade 5 54,000 53,960 6840 54,600 178 2 180 In compliance
Grade 6 54,000 53,960 640 54,600 178 2 180 In compliance
Grade 7 : - 54,000 53,960 640 54,600 178 2 180 In compliance
2 180 In compliance

Grade 8 54,000 53,960 . 640 54,600 178

Districts must maintain their instructiona! minutes at the Education Code Section 46207 minutes requirement.

The District has received incentive funding for increasing instructional time as provided by the incentive for Longer Instructional Day.
This-schedule presents information on the amount of instruction time offered by the District and whether the District complied with the
provisions of Education Code Sections 46200 through 46206. The District met or exceeded its targeted funding.

The District received an approval of their J-13A for 2 instructional days and the above J-13 credited minutes
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BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL TRENDS AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

General Fund

Rewvenues and other financial sources
Expenditures

Other uses and transfers

Total outgo ‘

Change in fund balance

Ending fund balance

Available reserves (note 1)

Reserve for economic uncertainties
Undesignated/unassigned fund balance

Available reserves as a percentage of
total outgo

Total long-term liabilities

Average daily attendance at P-2

2024 (budget)

(note 2) 2023 2022 2021

$3,180,362 $3,568,430 $3,733,333 $2,980,323
3,444 603 3,168,205 2,590,180 2,497,821
3,444 603 3,168,205 2,590,180 2,497,821
(264 241) 400,225 1,143,153 482,502
$4,447,061 $4,711,302 $4,311,077 $3,167,924
$3,504,128 $4,314,492 $3,541,529 $2,372,548
$ - $ - $ - $ -
$3,504,128 $4,314,492 $ 3,541,529 $2,372,548
101.7% 136.2% 136.7% 95.0%
$2,082,7863 $2,091,894 $1,401,308 $2,255,046
191 167 167 201

This schedule discloses the District's financial trends by displaying past fiscal years' data along with current fiscal year budget
information. These financial trend disclosures are used to evaluate the District's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable

period of time.

The General Fund balance has increased by $1,543,378 over the past two fiscal years. The fiscal year 2023-24 budget projects a
decrease of $264,241. For a District this size, the State recommends available reserves of at least the greater of $75,000 or 5%.

The District has incurred an operating surplus in each of the past three fiscal years. The District anticipates an operating deficit during
the 2023-24 fiscal year. Total long-term liabilities has decreased by $163,152 over the past two fiscal years.

Average daily attendance has decreased by 34 over the past two fiscal years. An increase in 24 ADA is anticipated during the fiscal

year 2023-24.

NOTES:

1 Available reserves consist of all unassigned fund balances and all funds reserved for economic uncertainties contained within

the General Fund.

2 Budget 2024 is included for analytical purposes only and has not been subjected to audit.
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BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF CHARTER SCHOOLS
JUNE 30, 2023

Charter
School Inclusion in
Charter School Number Financial Statements
Family Partnership Home Study 0763 Not Included
Trivium Charter School 1319 Not Included
Trivium Charter School Adventure 1994 Not Included
Trivium Charter School Voyage 1995 Not Included
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BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL AND BUDGET REPORT WITH
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2023

Deferred
General Maintenance
Fund Fund

June 30, 2023, annual financial and budget report fund balances/net position $ 4,806,980 $ 221,321
Understatement of accounts payable (95,678)
June 30, 2023, audited financial statements fund balances/net position $ 4,711,302 $ 221,321

General

Long-Term

Liabilities
June 30, 2023, annual financial and budget report long-term total liabilities $ -
Understatement of net pension liability 2,082,763
Understaternent of lease liability 9,131
June 30, 2023, audited financial statements long-term total liaoilities $ 2,091,894

e

This schiedule provides the information necessary to reconcile the fund baiances of all funds as reported on
the annual financial and budget report to the audited financia! statements.
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Associated Capital
Cafeteria Student Body Facilities Self-insurance
Fund Fund Fund Fund
3 69,421 $ 36,775 $ $ 52,777
$ 69,421 $ 36,775 $ $ 52,777
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Moss, Levy & Hartzheim LLP

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Trustees
Blochman Union School District
Santa Maria, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing Standards issued by the Comptrolier General of the United States, the
financial statements of the governmental activities, the major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Blochman
Union School District (the District), as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 28, 2023.

Report on internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal control over financial reporting
(internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's intemal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal controt.

A deficiency in intemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the
normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a materiat
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the fimited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to
identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we
performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with
which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statement. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of nornicompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Govemment Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an‘integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Pfica, Koy & Joctghecin. 2P

Santa Maria, California
November 28, 2023
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Moss, Levy & Hartzheim LLP

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCE

Board of Trustees
Blochman Union Schoo!l District
Santa Maria, California

Report on State Compliance
Opinion

We have audited the Blochman Union School District’s (the District) compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in
the 2022-2023 Guide for Annual Audits of Califomnia K-12 Local Educational Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, prescribed by
Title 5, California Code of Regulations, Section 19810 that could have a direct and material effect on each of Blochman Union School
District's state programs identified below for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023.

In our opinion, the Blochman Union School District complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to
above that are applicable to the statutory requirements listed in the schedule below for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States, and the 2022-2023 Guide for Annual Audits of Califomia K-12 Local Educational Agencies and State Compliance Reporting,
prescribed by Title 5, California Code of Regulations, Section 19810. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the District's compliance with the compliance requirements referred
to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of
contracts or grant agreements applicable to its state programs.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the material noncompliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on the District's compliance based on our audit.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with GAAS, Govemment Auditing Standards, and the 2022-2023 Guide for Annual Audits of California K-12
Local Educational Agencies and State Compliance Reporting will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resuilting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions misrepresentations, or the ovemide of internal controls. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the
judgement made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the District's compliance with the requirements of the state
programs as a whole.
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In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Govemment Auditing Standards, and the 2021-2022 Guide for Annual Audits of
Califomia K-12 Local Educational Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit;

Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the District's
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we consider
necessary in the circumstances;

Obtain an understanding of the District's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the 2022-2023 Guide for Annual Audits of Califomia K-12 Local Educational Agencies and State Compliance
Reporting, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Blochman Union School District's
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion; and

Select and test transactions and records to determine the District’s compliance with the state laws and regulations applicable
to the following items:

Procedures
Compliance Requirements Performed
LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCIES
OTHER THAN CHARTER SCHOOLS:
Attendance accounting:
Attendance reporting Yes
Teacher certification and misassignments Yes
Kindergarten continuance Yes

Independent study
Continuation education

Not applicable
Not applicable

instructionat Time Yes
Instructional Materials Yes
Ratios of Administrative Employees to Teachers Yes
Classroom Teacher Salaries Yes
Early Retirement Incentive Not applicable
GANN Limit Calculation Yes
School Accountability Report Card Yes

Juvenile Court Schools
Middle or Early College High Schools

Not applicable
Not applicable

K-3 Grade Span Adjustment Yes
Transportation Maintenance of Effort Yes
Apprenticeship, Related and Supplemental Instruction Not applicable
Comprehensive School Safety Plan Yes

District of Choice
Home to School Transportation Reimbursement

Not applicabie
Not applicable

Independent Study Certification for ADA Loss Mitigation Yes
SCHOOL DISTRICTS, COUNTY OFFICES OF

EDUCATION, AND CHARTER SCHOOLS:

California Clean Energy Jobs Act Yes
After/Before School Education and Safety Program Not applicable
Proper Expenditure of Education Protection Account Funds Yes
Unduplicated Local Control Funding Pupil Counts Yes
Local Control and Accountability Plan Yes

independent Study- Course Based
immunizations

Not applicable
Not applicable

Educator Effectiveness Yes
Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant (ELO-G) Yes
Career Technical Education incentive Grant Not applicabie
Transitional Kindergarten Yes
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Procedures

Compliance Requirements Performed
CHARTER SCHOOLS:
Atendance Not applicable
Mode of Instruction Not applicable
Nonclassroom-Based Instruction/independent Study Not applicable
Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based

Instruction Not applicable
Annual Instruction Minutes ~ Classroom Based Not applicable
Charter School Facility Grant Program Not applicable

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identify during the audit.

Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
noncompliance on a timely basis. A material weakness in intemal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material noncompliance with a
compliance requirement will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in intemal control
over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemnal control over compliance that is less severe than a material
weakness in intemnal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention from those charged with governance

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was the limited purpose described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify
any deficiencies in internal contro! over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal contro! over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over

compliance and the results of that testing based on the 2022-2023 Guide for Annual Audits of California K-12 Local Educational
Agencies and State Compliance Reporting. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Pesa, Kavy & Fotgheein, £8P

Santa Maria, California
November 28, 2023

The term “not applicable” is used above to mean either Blochman Union School District did not offer the program during the current
fiscal year or the program applies to a different type of local education agency.
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FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS SECTION






BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

JUNE 30, 2023

Section | -~ Summary of Auditors’ Resuits
Financial Statements
Type of auditors’ report issued:
internal control over financial reporting:
Material weaknesses identified?
Significant deficiencies identified not considered
to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

State Awards

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
repoited in accordance with Standards and Procedures
for Audits of California K-12 Local Education Agencies?

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance
for state programs;
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Unmodified

Yes
Yes

Yes

Yes

Unmodified

X No
X None reported
X No
X No




BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
JUNE 30, 2023

Section Il - Financial Statements Findings

There were no financial statement findings and questioned costs.
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BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
JUNE 30, 2023

Section lli - State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

There were no state award findings and questioned costs.
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BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR FISCAL YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

JUNE 30, 2023

Section I - Financial Statements Findings

There were no prior fiscal year financial statement findings or questioned costs.
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BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR FISCAL YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
JUNE 30, 2023

Section ill — State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding 2022-001
TRANSPORTATION MAINTENANCE OF EFFORT
40000

Criteria:

In accordance with Education Code Section 42238.03(a)(6)(B), a District must expend the lesser of the amount expended for
home to school transportation in the 2012-13 fiscal year or the amount of revenue received in 2012-13 fiscal year, as
adjusted by Education Code Section 42238.03(a)(G)(A)(iil).

Condition:
District did not expend the [esser of the amount expended for home to school transportation in the 2012-13 fiscal year or the
amount of revenue received in 2012-13 fiscal year, as adjusted by Education Code Section 42238.03(a)(6)(A)(iii).

Cause:
Did not operate home to school transportation in fiscal year 2021-22.

Effect:
District is not in compiiance.

Repeat Finding:
No.

Questioneci Costs:
$0.

Recommendation:
The District should expend the required amount on home to school transportation.

District Corrective Action Plan:

Due to the COVID-19 pandermic, the District was unable to safely provide home to school transportation in the 2021-22 fiscal
year. This has been corrected in the 2022-23 fiscal year. The District is contracting with American Star Tours to provide
home to school transportation. The amount of the contract is $219,240.

Current Status:
Implemented.
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Blochman Union School District

Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Benjamin Foxen Elementary School

2023-2024
Required Members Title
Doug Brown Superintendent/Principal
Sam Orozco Special Education Director/School
Pychologist
Holly DeKorte, Nancy Myers, Teacher
Adrienne Perkins, Stacey Rapp
Deanna Barnes Classified Staff
N/A Student
Lyuba Corbett, Jennifer Korber, Parent of Child Attending the School
Johnna Perez, Angelina Sumner,
Michelle Whitney, Travis Whitney

Date Adopted by School Site Council: October 24, 2023




Background

The development of a comprehensive school safety plan is mandated by California Education Code 32281. This mandate,
which was established by Senate Bill 187, states that each school’s Site Council, or a Safety Planning Committee authorized
by the Site Council, shall develop a “safety plan” relevant to the needs and resources of the school. For schools built before
1998, the initial plans were to be adopted by September 1, 1998. For schools built after 1998, the plans are to be developed
and adopted prior to the school’s opening.

According to the education code, the School Site Council may delegate this responsibility to a School Safety Planning
Committee. However, the committee must include the following members and must consult with a representative from a
law enforcement agency in the writing and development of the plan:

e  Principal or designee

e Teacher

e Parent Whose Child Attends the School

e  (lassified Employee

You are strongly encouraged to consult with staff, parents, students (where appropriate), and the broader community, in
the development of the plan.

The plan is to be updated annually and kept on file at both the school site AND the district office, and readily available for
inspection by the public.

The plan shall consist of two parts:

Part 1 — The “Comprehensive School Safety Plan” shall include all components required by Education Code 32281-32282
except for the emergency preparedness components. The Comprehensive School Safety Plan shall be on file, and available
for inspection by the public, with the Educational Services Division of the district.

Part 2 — The “Emergency Preparedness Plan” shall include disaster procedures (routine and emergency), including
earthquakes and other manmade or natural disasters.

The Comprehensive School Safety Plan shall include an action plan that clearly identifies policies and procedures that
will improve both the safety and climate on campus, and shall include an evaluation component.

Section |

State your sites’ GOALS for the 2023-2024 school year. Please remember to have at least one ATTENDANCE
and one SCHOOL CONNECTEDNESS goal, as this links directly to the LCAP. OQur goals outlined in this plan are
as follows:

1. Ensure parents have opportunities to participate in school activities and provide input in decisions that affect the school.
2. Increase school attendance rates.
3. Reduce pupil suspension and expulsion rates.

Assessment of current status of school crime, safety and climate (provide site specific data and at least 3 years of
trend data) The primary source of data for school crime, safety and climate is provided by annual CALPADS
reporting. The three-year trend as shown below indicates that chronic absenteeism, suspensions, and expulsions are
low and continue to decrease. This data reinforces that our current efforts in most areas of crime, safety and
climate are within the range of expectations for our district.



The three-year trend is as follows:

Year Chronic Absenteeism Suspension Rate Expulsion Rate
Rate

2022/2023 7% 4% 0%

2021/2022 12.16% 0% 0%

2020/2021 2.19% 1.72% 0%

Our Chronic Absenteeism rate is declining back toward pre-pandemic rates.

In an effort to reduce pupil suspensions and expulsions we have a school psychologist who meets with students who
have social and emotional issues. Our teachers emphasize practicing good character traits in the classroom. School
assemblies address bullying issues. Teachers have consistent classroom, cafeteria, and playground rules so that
students know what is expected of them.

“State your site goals from your 2021-2022 comprehensive school safety plan (or LCAP) and the status of those

goals. Be specific with what the site has accomplished, or not done, regarding each specific goal.

1. Ensure parents have opportunities to participate in school activities and provide input in decisions that affect the school.
Our goal is to provide opportunities for parental involvement with making decisions that affect the school. We provide
multiple opportunities for parental involvement throughout the year. We have a strong group of parents who participate
in the majority of the events. Other parents are not able to participate due to barriers that are out of the school's control.
Parental involvement is evidenced by parent participation in School Site Council and LCAP meetings, attendance at school
events, and attendance at parent-teacher conferences.

2. Increase school attendance rates.
The majority of the actions/services were already in place and we simply continued them from the prior year. In
2017/2018 we added a monthly lottery to win lunch field trips with the Principal for students with perfect attendance
during the month and a lunch with the Principal for all students with perfect attendance during the trimester.

3. Reduce pupil suspension and expulsion rates.
While our school suspension and expulsion rates are low, as shown in the chart above, there is always room for
improvement. We will continue to work with our students to minimize bullying and encourage tolerance and cooperation.

Section l|

Strategies and programs - Board Policies, Procedures and California Education Code that support student and staff safety,
and positive school climate

These policies, procedures and education codes are to be reviewed at the beginning of every school year with all staff.
Benjamin Foxen Elementary School commits to:

Sharing the comprehensive school safety plan, the emergency plan, and our action plan, with both site council and all staff
members, before the end of October of the current school year.

A. Positive School Climate (BP 5137)

The Board of Trustees desires to enhance student learning by providing an orderly, caring, and nurturing
educational and social environment in which all students can feel safe and take pride in their school and their
achievements. The school environment should be characterized by positive interpersonal relationships among
students and between students and staff.

{cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)
{cf. 3515 - Campus Security)

{cf. 3515.2 - Disruptions)

{cf. 5030 - Student Wellness)

{cf. 5131.4 - Student Disturbances)

(cf. 5142 - Safety}



(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)

All staff are expected to serve as role models for students by demonstrating positive, professional attitudes and
respect toward each student and other staff members. Teachers shall use effective classroom management
techniques based on clear expectations for student behavior.

(cf. 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21 - Professional Standards)

Staff shall consistently enforce Board policies and regulations which establish rules for appropriate student
conduct, including prohibitions against bullying, cyberbullying, harassment of students, hazing, other violence or
threats of violence against students and staff, and drug, alcohol, and tobacco use.

{cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan)

{cf. 3513.3 - Tobacco-Free Schools)

(cf. 4020 - Drug and Alcohol-Free Workplace)

(cf. 5131 - Conduct)

{cf. 5131.1 - Bus Conduct)

{cf. 5131.6 - Alcohol and Drugs)

(cf. 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments)
(cf. 5136 - Gangs)

{cf. 5144 - Discipline)

(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)
(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))
(cf. 5145.2 - Freedom of Speech/Expression)

(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)

(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior)

The district's curriculum shall include age-appropriate character education which includes, but is not limited to,
the principles of equality, human dignity, mutual respect, fairness, honesty, and citizenship. Teachers are
encouraged to employ cooperative learning strategies that foster positive interactions in the classroom among
students from diverse backgrounds.

BP 5137(b)

{cf. 5131.9 - Academic Honesty)

{cf. 6141 - Curriculum Development and Evaluation)

(cf. 6142.94 - History/Social Science Instruction)

(cf. 6142.3 - Civic Education)

(cf. 6142.4 - Service Learning/Community Service Classes)

{cf. 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials)

The Superintendent/Principal or designee may develop other strategies to enhance students' feelings of
connectedness with the school, such as campus beautification projects, graffiti removal, development of
extracurricular activities and after-school programs, pairing of adult mentors with individual students,
recognition of student achievement, and encouragement of strong family and community involvement in the
school.

{cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance)

{cf. 5126 - Awards for Achievement)

(cf. 5131.5 - Vandalism and Graffiti)

{cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs)

(cf. 6020 - Parent [nvolvement)

(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities)
(cf. 6145.5 - Student Organizations and Equal Access)

Students shall have opportunities to voice their concerns about school policies and practices and to share
responsibility for solving problems that affect their school.



The school shall promote nonviolent conflict resolution techniques in order to encourage attitudes and behaviors
that foster harmonious relations. As part of this effort, students shall be taught the skills necessary to reduce
violence, including communication skills, anger management, bias reduction, and mediation skills.

(cf. 5138 - Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation)
(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services)

Staff shall receive professional development designed to improve classroom management, conflict resolution
techniques, and communications with students and parents/guardians including persons of diverse backgrounds.

(cf. 4131 - Staff Developinent)
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)

Legal Reference:
BP 5137(c)

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

233-233.8 Hate violence prevention

32280-32289 School safety plans

32285.5 Teen court programs

35181 Governing board policy on responsibilities of students
35291-35291.5 Rules

44807 Teachers' duty concerning conduct of students
48900-48925 Suspension and expulsion

Management Resources:

CSBA PUBLICATIONS

Cyberbullying: Policy Considerations for Boards, Policy Brief, July 2007

Protecting Qur Schools: Governing Board Strategies to Combat School Violence, rev. 1999
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS

Bullying at School, 2003

Creating Safe and Drug-Free Schools: An Action Guide, 1996

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS

Preventing Bullying: A Manual for Schools and Communities, 1998

WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

California Department of Education, Learning Support: http://www.cde.ca.gov/Is
National School Safety Center: http://www.schoolsafety.us

U.S. Department of Education, Office of Safe and Drug-Free Schools: http://www.ed.gov/offices/OESE/SDFS

Policy BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: November 14,2017  Santa Maria, California



B. Nondiscrimination/Harassment/Anti-Bullying (BP 5145.3)

This policy shall apply to all acts constituting unlawful discrimination or harassment related to school activity or to
school attendance occurring within a district school, and to acts which occur off campus or outside of school-related or
school-sponsored activities but which may have an impact or create a hostile environment at school.

The Board of Trustees desires to provide a safe school environment that allows all students equal access to and
opportunities in the district's academic, extracurricular, and other educational support programs, services, and activities.
The Board prohibits, at any district school or school activity, unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory
harassment, intimidation, and buflying, targeted at any student by anyone, based on the student's actual or perceived
race, color, ancestry, nationality, national origin, immigration status, ethnic group identification, ethnicity, age, religion,
marital status, pregnancy, parental status, physical or mental disability, medical condition, sex, sexual orientation,
gender, gender identity, gender expression, or genetic information, or association with a person or group with one or
more of these actual or perceived characteristics.

Unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying, may result from physical,
verbal, nonverbal, or written conduct based on any of the categories listed above. Unlawful discrimination also occurs
when prohibited conduct is so severe, persistent, or pervasive that it affects a student's ability to participate in or
benefit from an educational program or activity; creates an intimidating, threatening, hostile, or offensive educational
environment; has the effect of substantially or unreasonably interfering with a student's academic performance; or
otherwise adversely affects a student's educational opportunities.

Unlawful discrimination also includes disparate treatment of students based on one of the categories above with respect to
the provision of opportunities to participate in school programs or activities or the provision or receipt of educational
benefits or services.

The Board also prohibits any form of retaliation against any individual who reports or participates in the reporting of
unlawful discrimination, files or participates in the filing of a complaint, or investigates or participates in the investigation of
a complaint or report alleging unlawful discrimination. Retaliation complaints shall be investigated and resolved in the
same manner as a discrimination complaint.

The Superintendent or designee shall facilitate students' access to the educational program by publicizing the district's
nondiscrimination policy and related complaint procedures to students, parents/guardians, and employees. In addition,
the Superintendent or designee shall post the district's policies prohibiting discrimination, harassment, intimidation, and
bullying and other required information on the district's web site in a manner that is easily accessible to
parents/guardians and students, in accordance with law and the accompanying administrative regulation.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide training and/or information on the scope and use of the policy and
complaint procedures and take other measures designed to increase the school community's understanding of the
requirements of law related to discrimination. The Superintendent or designee shall regularly review the
implementation of the district's nondiscrimination policies and practices and, as necessary, shall take action to remove
any identified barrier to student access to or participation in the district's educational program. The Superintendent or
designee shall report the findings and recommendations to the Board after each review.

Regardless of whether a complainant complies with the writing, timeline, and/or other formal filing requirements, all
complaints alleging unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying, shall be
investigated and prompt action taken to stop the discrimination, prevent recurrence, and address any continuing effect
on students.

Students who engage in unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, retaliation, or
bullying, in violation of law, Board policy, or administrative regulation shali be subject to appropriate consequence or
discipline, which may include suspension or expulsion when the behavior is severe or pervasive as defined in Education
Code 48500.4. Any employee who permits or engages in prohibited discrimination, including discriminatory harassment,
intimidation, retaliation, or bullying, shall be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal.

Record-Keeping

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain a record of all reported cases of unlawful discrimination, including
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying, to enable the district to monitor, address, and prevent repetitive
prohibited behavior in district schools.

Policy BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
Original adopted date : 11/14/2017 Last revised date: 6/09/2020 Santa Maria, California



C. Child Abuse Reporting Procedures
(AR 5141.4)
Definitions
Child abuse or neglect inciudes the following: (Penal Code 11165.5, 11165.6)
1. Anphysical injury or death inflicted by other than accidental means on a child by another person
2. Sexual abuse of a child, including sexual assault or sexual exploitation, as defined in Penal Code 11165.1

3. Neglect of a child as defined in Penal Code 11165.2

4. Willful harming or injuring of a child or the endangering of the person or health of a child as defined in Penal
Code 11165.3

5. Unlawful corporal punishment or injury as defined in Penal Code 11165.4

Child abuse or neglect does not include:

1. A mutual affray between minors (Penal Code 11165.6)

2. Aninjury caused by reasonable and necessary force used by a peace officer acting within the course and scope of
employment (Penal Code 11165.5, 11165.6)

3. Aninjury resulting from the exercise by a teacher, vice principal, principal, or other certificated employee of the
same degree of physical control over a student that a parent/guardian would be legally privileged to exercise, not
exceeding the amount of physical control reasonably necessary to maintain order, protect property, protect the

health and safety of students, or maintain proper and appropriate conditions conducive to learning (Education
Code 44807)

4. Aninjury caused by a school employee's use of force that is reasonable and necessary to quell a disturbance
threatening physical injury to persons or damage to property, for purposes of self-defense, or to obtain
weapons or other dangerous objects within the control of a student (Education Code 49001)

5. Physical pain or discomfort caused by athletic competition or other such recreational activity voluntarily
engaged in by a student {Education Code 49001)

6. Homelessness or classification as an unaccompanied minor (Penal Code 11165.15)

Mandated reporters include, but are not limited to, teachers; instructional aides; teacher's aides or assistants; classified
employees; certificated pupil personnel employees; administrative officers or supervisors of child attendance; athletic
coaches, administrators, and directors; licensees, administrators, and employees of a licensed child day care facility; Head
Start program teachers; district police or security officers; licensed nurses or health care providers; and administrators,
presenters, and counselors of a child abuse prevention program. (Penal Code 11165.7)

Reasonable suspicion means that it is objectively reasonable for a person to entertain a suspicion, based upon facts that
could cause a reasonable person in a like position, drawing when appropriate on the person's training and experience, to
suspect child abuse or neglect. However, reasonable suspicion does not require certainty that child abuse or neglect has
occurred nor does it require a specific medical indication of child abuse or neglect. (Penal Code 11166)

Reportable Offenses

A mandated reporter shall make a report using the procedures provided below whenever, acting in a professional capacity or
within the scope of employment, the mandated reporter has knowledge of or observes a child whom the mandated reporter
knows or reasonably suspects has been the victim of child abuse or neglect. (Penal Code 11166)

Any mandated reporter who has knowledge of or who reasonably suspects that a child is suffering serious emotional
damage or is at a substantial risk of suffering serious emotional damage, based on evidence of severe anxiety, depression,
withdrawal, or untoward aggressive behavior toward self or others, may make a report to the

appropriate agency. (Penal Code 11165.9, 11166.05, 11167)



Any district employee who reasonably believes to have observed the commission of a murder, rape, or lewd or

lascivious act by use of force, violence, duress, menace, or fear of immediate and unlawful bodily injury against a victim
who is a child under age 14 shall notify a peace officer. (Penal Code 152.3, 288)

Responsibility for Reporting
The reporting duties of mandated reporters are individual and cannot be delegated to another person. (Penal Code 11166)
When two or more mandated reporters jointly have knowledge of a known or suspected instance of child abuse or neglect
the report may be made by a member of the team selected by mutual agreement and a single report may be made and

signed by the selected member of the reporting team. Any member who has knowledge that the member designated to
report has failed to do so shall thereafter make the report. (Penal Code 11166)

’

No supervisor or administrator shall impede or inhibit a mandated reporter from making a report. (Penal Code 11166)

Any person not identified as a mandated reporter who has knowledge of or observes a child whom the person knows or
reasonably suspects has been a victim of child abuse or neglect may report the known or suspected instance of child
abuse or neglect to the appropriate agency. (Penal Code 11166)

Reporting Procedures
1. Initial Telephone Report
Immediately or as soon as practicable after knowing or observing suspected child abuse or neglect, a mandated reporter shall
make an initial report by telephone to any police department (excluding a school district police/security department), sheriff's

department, county probation department if designated by the county to receive such reports, or county welfare department.
(Penal Code 11165.9, 11166)

Such reports shall be made to the following agency(ies):

Blochman Union School District (name of
appropriate agency)

4949 Foxen Canyon Rd., Santa Maria, CA 93454 (address)

805-937-1148
{(phone number)

When the initial telephone report is made, the mandated reporter shall note the name of the official contacted, the date
and time contacted, and any instructions or advice received.

2. Written Report

Within 36 hours of knowing or observing the information concerning the incident, the mandated reporter shall prepare and
either send, fax, or electronically transmit to the appropriate agency a written follow-up report, which includes a completed
California Department of Justice (DOJ) form (BCIA 8572). (Penal Code 11166, 11168)

The DOJ form may be obtained from the district office or other appropriate agencies, such as the police department,
sheriff's department, or county probation or welfare department.

Reports of suspected child abuse or neglect shall include, if known: (Penal Code 11167)
a. The name, business address, and telephone number of the person making the report and the capacity

that makes the person a mandated reporter

D. The child's name and address, present location, and, where applicable, school, grade, and class



C. The names, addresses, and telephone numbers of the child's parents/guardians

d. The name, address, telephone number, and other relevant personal information about the person(s) who
might have abused or neglected the child

€. The information that gave rise to the reasonable suspicion of child abuse or neglect and the source(s) of
that information

The mandated reporter shall make a report even if some of this information is not known or is uncertain to the mandated
reporter. (Penal Code 11167)

The mandated reporter may give to an investigator from an agency investigating the case, including a licensing agency, any
information relevant to an incident of child abuse or neglect or to a report made for serious emotional damage pursuant to
Penal Code 11166.05. (Penal Code 11167)

3. Internal Reporting

The mandated reporter shall not be required to disclose the mandated reporter's identity to a supervisor, the principal, or the
Superintendent or designee. {Penal Code 11166)

However, employees reporting child abuse or neglect to an appropriate agency are encouraged, but not required, to notify
the principal as soon as possible after the initial telephone report to the appropriate agency. When so notified, the
principal shall inform the Superintendent or designee.

The principal so notified shall provide the mandated reporter with any assistance necessary to ensure that reporting
procedures are carried out in accordance with law, Board policy, and administrative regulation. At the mandated
reporter's request, the principal may assist in completing and filing the necessary forms.

Reporting the information to an employer, supervisor, principal, school counselor, co-worker, or other person shall not be
a substitute for making a mandated report to the appropriate agency. (Penal Code 11166)
Training

Within the first six weeks of each school year, or within the first six weeks of employment if hired during the school year,
the Superintendent or designee shall provide training on mandated reporting requirements to district employees and
persons working on their behalf who are mandated reporters. {Education Code 44691; Penal Code 11165.7)

The Superintendent or designee shall use the online training module provided by the California Department of Social Services
(CDSS). (Education Code 44691)

The training shalt include, but not necessarily be limited to, training in identification and reporting of child abuse and neglect.
In addition, the training shall include information that failure to report an incident of known or reasonably suspected child
abuse or neglect as required by law is a misdemeanor punishable by imprisonment and/or a fine as specified. (Education Code
44691; Penal Code 11165.7)

The Superintendent or designee shall obtain and retain proof of each mandated reporter's completion of the training.
{Education Code 44691)

in addition, at least once every three years, school personnel may receive training in the prevention of child abuse,
including sexual abuse, on school grounds, by school personnel, or in school-sponsored programs. (Education Code 44691)

Victim Interviews by Social Services

Whenever CDSS or another government agency is investigating suspected child abuse or neglect that occurred within the
child's home or out-of-home care facility, the student may be interviewed by an agency representative during school
hours, on school premises. The Superintendent or designee shall give the student the choice of being interviewed in
private or in the presence of any adult schoo! employee or volunteer aide selected by the student. (Penal Code 11174.3)

A staff member or volunteer aide selected by a child may decline to be present at the interview. If the selected



person accepts, the principal or designee shall inform the person of the following requirements prior to the interview:
(Penal Code 11174.3)

1. The purpose of the selected person's presence at the interview is to lend support to the child and enable the
child to be as comfortable as possible.

2. The selected person shall not participate in the interview.
3. The selected person shall not discuss the facts or circumstances of the case with the child.

4. The selected person is subject to the confidentiality requirements of the Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act,
a violation of which is punishable as specified in Penal Code 11167.5.

If a staff member agrees to be present, the interview shall be held at a time during school hours when it does not involve
an expense to the school. (Penal Code 11174.3)

Release of Child to Peace Officer

When a child is released to a peace officer and taken into custody as a victim of suspected child abuse or neglect, the
Superintendent or designee and/or principal shall not notify the parent/guardian, but rather shall provide the peace officer
with the address and telephone number of the child’s parent/guardian. (Education Code 48906)

Parent/Guardian Complaints

Upon request, the Superintendent or designee shall provide parents/guardians with procedures for reporting suspected
child abuse occurring at a school site to appropriate agencies. For parents/guardians whose primary language is not
English, such procedures shall be in their primary language and, when communicating orally regarding those guidelines
and/or procedures, an interpreter shall be provided.

To file a complaint against a district employee or other person suspected of child abuse or neglect at a school site,
parents/guardians may file a report by telephone, in person, or in writing with any appropriate agency identified above
under "Reporting Procedures." if a parent/guardian makes a complaint about an employee to any other employae, the
employee receiving the information shall notify the parent/guardian of procedures for filing a complaint with the
appropriate agency. The employee shall also file a report when obligated to do so pursuant to Penal Code 11166 using the
procedures described above for mandated reporters.

In addition, if the child is enrolled in special education, a separate complaint may be filed with the California Department of
Education pursuant to 5 CCR 3200-3205.

Notifications

The Superintendent or designee shall provide to all new employees who are mandated reporters a statement that informs
them of their status as mandated reporters, their reporting obligations under Penal Code 11166, and their confidentiality
rights under Penal Code 11167. The district also shall provide these new employees with a copy of Penal Code 11165.7,
11166, and 11167. (Penal Code 11165.7, 11166.5)

Before beginning employment, any person who will be a mandated reporter by virtue of the person's position shall sign a
statement indicating knowledge of the reporting obligations under Penal Code 11166 and compliance with such
provisions. The signed statement shall be retained by the Superintendent or designee. (Penal Code 11166.5)

Employees who work with dependent adults shall be notified of legal responsibilities and reporting procedures
pursuant to Welfare and Institutions Code 15630-15637.

The Superintendent or designee also shall notify all employees that:

1. A mandated reporter who reports a known or suspected instance of child abuse or neglect shall not be held civilly
or criminally liable for making a report and this immunity shall apply even if the mandated reporter acquired the
knowledge or reasonable suspicion of child abuse or neglect outside of the mandated reporter's professional
capacity or outside the scope of employment. Any other person making a report shall not incur civil or criminal
tiability uniess it can be proven that the person knowingly made a false report or made a report with reckless
disregard of the truth or falsity of the report. (Penal Code 11172)



2,

If a mandated reporter fails to timely report an incident of known or reasonably suspected child abuse or neglect,
the mandated reporter may be guilty of a crime punishable by a fine and/or imprisonment. (Penal Code 11166)No
employee shall be subject to any sanction by the district for making a report unless it can be shown that the
employee knowingly made a false report or made a report with reckless disregard of the truth or faisity of the
report. (Penal Code 11166, 11172)

Regulation BLOCHMAN UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
Original approval: November 14, 2017 Revised: 8/10/2021 Santa Maria, California

D. Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process Procedures

(AR 5144.1)

Definitions
Suspension means removal of a student from ongoing instruction for adjustment purposes. However, suspension
does not mean any of the following: (Education Code 48925)
Reassignment to another education program or class at the same school where the student will receive continuing
instruction for the length of day prescribed by the Governing Board for students of the same grade level
Referral to a certificated employee designated by the principal to advise students
Removal from the class, but without reassignment to another class or program, for the remainder of the class period
without sending the student to the principal or designee as provided in Education Code 48910, so long as removal
from a particular class does not occur more than once every five school days.
Expulsion means removal of a student from the immediate supervision and control or the general supervision of
school personnel. (Education Code 48925)
Notice of Regulations
At the beginning of each school year, the principal of each school shall ensure that all students and
parents/guardians are notified in writing of all school rules related to discipline, including suspension and
expulsion. (Education Code 35291, 48900.1, 48980)
Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades K-12

Acts for which a student, including a student with disabilities, may be suspended or expelied shall be only those
specified as follows and in the sections "Additional Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades 4-12" and
"Additional Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades 9-12" below:
Caused, attempted to cause, or threatened to cause physical injury to another person; willfully used force or violence
upon another person, except in self-defense; or committed as an aider or abettor, as adjudged by a juvenile court, a
crime of physical violence in which the victim suffered great or serious bodily injury (Education Code 48900(a) and (t))
Possessed, sold, or otherwise furnished any firearm, knife, explosive, or other dangerous object, unless, in the case of
possession of any object of this type, the student had obtained written permission to possess the item from a
certificated school employee, with the principal or designee's concurrence (Education Code 48900(b))
Unlawfully possessed, used, sold, otherwise furnished, or was under the influence of any controlled substance as
defined in Health and Safety Code 11053-11059, alcoholic beverage, or intoxicant of any kind (Education Code
48900(c))
Unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any controlled substance as defined in Health and Safety Code
11053-11058, alcoholic beverage, or intoxicant of any kind, and then sold, delivered, or otherwise furnished to any
person another liguid, substance, or material and represented the same as a controlled substance, alcoholic beverage,
or intoxicant (Education Code 48900(d))
Committed or attempted to commit robbery or extortion (Education Code 48900(e))
Caused or attempted 1o cause damage to school property or private property (Education Code 48900(f))
Stole or attempted to steal school property or private property (Fducation Code 48900(g))
Possessed or used tobacco or products containing tobacco or nicotine products, including, but not limited to, cigars,
cigarettes, miniature cigars, clove cigarettes, smokeless tobacco, snuff, chew packets, and betel, except



10.

11,

12.

13.

14,

15.
16.

17

that this restriction shall not prohibit a student from using or possessing prescription products (Education Code
48900(h))
Committed an obscene act or engaged in habitual profanity or vulgarity (Education Code 48900(i)}
Unlawfully possessed, offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any drug paraphernalia, as defined in Health and Safety
Code 11014.5 (Education Code 48900(j))
Knowingly received stolen school property or private property (Education Code 48900(1))
Possessed an imitation firearm (Education Code 48900(m))
Imitation firearm means a replica of a firearm that is so substantially similar in physical properties to an existing
firearm as to lead a reasonable person to conclude that the replica is a firearm. {Education Code 48900(m))
Committed or attempted to commit a sexual assault as defined in Penal Code 261, 266c, 286, 287, 288, 289, or former
288a, or committed a sexual battery as defined in Penal Code 243.4 {(Education Code 48900(n))
Harassed, threatened, or intimidated a student who is a complaining witness or witness in a school disciplinary
proceeding for the purpose of preventing that student from being a witness and/or retaliating against that student for
being a witness (Education Code 48900{0))
Unlawfully offered, arranged to sell, negotiated to sell, or sold the prescription drug Soma (Education Code 48900(p))
Engaged in, or attempted to engage in, hazing (Education Code 48900(q))
Hazing means a method of initiation or pre-initiation into a student organization or body, whether or not the
organization or body is officially recognized by an educational institution, which is likely to cause serious bodily
injury or personal degradation or disgrace resulting in physical or mental harm to a former, current, or prospective
student. Hazing does not include athletic events or school-sanctioned events. (Education Code 48900(q))

. Engaged in an act of bullying (Education Code 48900(r}))

Bullying means any severe or pervasive physical or verbal act or conduct, including communications made in
writing or by means of an electronic act, directed toward one or more students that has or can reasonably be
predicted to have the effect of placing a reasonable student(s) in fear of harm to self or property; cause the student
to experience a substantially detrimental effect on physical or mental health; or cause the student to experience
substantial interferences with academic performance or ability to participate in or benefit from the services,
activities, or privileges provided by a school. (Education Code 48900(r))

Bullying includes any act of sexual harassment, hate violence, or harassment, threat, or intimidation, as defined in
Education Code 48900.2, 48900.3, or 48900.4 and below in the section "Additional Grounds for Suspension and
Expulsion: Grades 4-12," that has any of the effects described above on a reasonable student.

Bullying also includes an act of cyber sexual bullying by a student through the dissemination of, or the solicitation
or incitement to disseminate, a photograph or other visual recording that depicts a nude, semi- nude, or sexually
explicit photograph or other visual recording of an identifiable minor, when such dissemination is to another
student or to school personnel by means of an electronic act and has or can be reasonably predicted to have one
or more of the effects of bullying described above. Cyber sexual bullying does not include a depiction, portrayal,
or image that has any serious literary, artistic, educational, political, or scientific value or that involves athletic
events or school-sanctioned activities.

Electronic act means the creation or transmission originated on or off the school site by means of an electronic
device, including, but not limited to, a telephone, wireless telephone, or other wireless communication device,
computer, or pager, of a communication including, but not limited to: (Education Code 48900(r))

a. A message, text, sound, video, or image



b. A post on a social network Internet web site, including, but not limited to, posting to or creating a burn page or
creating a credible impersonation or false profile for the purpose of causing a reasonable student any of the
effects of bullying described above.

Reasonable student means a student, including, but not limited to, a student who has been identified as a student

with a disability, who exercises average care, skill, and judgment in conduct for a person of the student's age, or

for a person of the student's age and disability. (Education Code 48900(r))

Burn page means an internet web site created for the purpose of causing a reasonable student any of the effects

of bullying described above. (Education Code 48900(r))

Credible impersonation means to knowingly and without consent impersonate a student for the purpose of

bullying the student and such that the student would reasonably believe, or has reasonably believed, that the

student was or is the student who was impersonated. (Education Code 48900(r))

False profile means a profile of a fictitious student or profile using the likeness or attributes of an actual student

other than the student who created the false profile. (Education Code 48900(r))

An electronic act is not considered pervasive conduct solely on the basis that it has been transmitted to the

internet or is currently posted on the internet. (Education Code 48900(r))

18. Aided or abetted the infliction or attempted infliction of physical injury on another person, as defined in Penal Code
31 (Education Code 48900(t))
19. Made terrorist threats against school officials and/or school property (Education Code 48900.7)

A terrorist threat includes any written or oral statement by a person who willfully threatens to commit a crime

which will result in death or great bodily injury to another person or property damage in excess of $1,000, with the

specific intent that the statement is to be taken as a threat, even if there is no intent of actually carrying out the

crime. {Education Code 48900.7)

Additional Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades 4-12

A student in grades 4-12 shall be subject to suspension or recommendation for expulsion when it is determined
that the student:

1. Committed sexual harassment as defined in Education Code 212.5 (Education Code 48900.2)

Sexual harassment means conduct which, when considered from the perspective of a reasonable person of the
same gender as the victim, is sufficiently severe or pervasive as to have a negative impact upon the victim's
academic performance or to create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational environment. (Education
Code 212.5, 48900.2)

2. Caused, attempted to cause, threatened to cause, or participated in an act of hate violence as defined in Education
Code 233 (Education Code 48900.3)

Hate violence means any act punishable under Penal Code 422.6, 422.7, or 422.75. Such acts include injuring or
intimidating a victim, interfering with the exercise of a victim's civil rights, or damaging a victim's property because
of the victim's race, ethnicity, religion, nationality, disability, gender, gender identity, gender expression, or sexual
orientation; a perception of the presence of any of those characteristics in the victim; or the victim's association
with a person or group with one or more of those actual or perceived characteristics. (Education Code 233; Penal
Code 422.55)

3. Intentionally engaged in harassment, threats, or intimidation against district personnel or students that is sufficiently
severe or pervasive to have the actual and reasonably expected effect of materially disrupting classwork, creating
substantial disorder, and invading the rights of school personnel or students by creating an intimidating or hostile
educational environment. (Education Code 48900.4)

Suspension from Class by a Teacher

A teacher may suspend a student from class for the remainder of the day and the following day for any of the acts
specified in Education Code 48900 and listed as Items #1-19 under "Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades
K-12" above or for disruption or willful defiance at any grade level, including grades K-8. (Education Code 48910)
When suspending a student from class, the teacher shall immediately report this action to the principal or designee
and send the student to the principal or designee for appropriate action. If that action requires the continuing
presence of the student at school, the student shall be appropriately supervised during the class periods from
which the student has been suspended. (Education Code 48910)

As soon as possible after the teacher decides to suspend the student, the teacher shall ask the student's
parent/guardian to attend a parent-teacher conference regarding the suspension. A counselor or psychologist may
attend the conference i it is practicahle, and a school administrator shall attend if either the parent/guardian or



1

teacher so requests. {Education Code 48910)

A student suspended from class shall not be returned to class during the period of the suspension without the
approval of the teacher of the class and the principal or designee. {Education Code 48910)

A student suspended from class shall not be placed in another regular class during the period of suspension.
However, a student assigned to more than one class per day may continue to attend other regular classes except
those held at the same time as the class from which the student was suspended. (Education Code 48910)

A teacher may also refer a student, for any of the acts specified above in Education Code 48900, to the principal
or designee for consideration of a suspension from school. {Education Code 48910)

The teacher of any class from which a student is suspended may require the student to complete any assignments
and tests missed during the removal. (Education Code 48913)

Suspension by Superintendent, Principal or Principal's Designee

To implement disciplinary procedures at a school site, the principal may, in writing, designate as the principal's
designee another administrator or, if the principal is the only administrator at the school site, a certificated
employee. As necessary, the principal may, in writing, also designate another administrator or certificated
employee as the secondary designee to assist with disciplinary procedures when the principal and the principal's
primary designee are absent from the school site.

The Superintendent, principal, or designee shall immediately suspend any student found at schooi or at a school
activity away from school to have committed any of the acts listed in the Board policy under "Authority to Expel"
for which a recommendation of expulsion is required. (Education Code 48915(c))

The Superintendent, principal, or designee may impose a suspension for a first offense if it is determined that the
student violated any of Items #1-5 listed under "Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades K-12" above or if
the student's presence causes a danger to persons. (Education Code 48900.5)

For all other offenses, a student may be suspended only when the Superintendent or principal has determined that
other means of correction have failed to bring about proper conduct. (Education Code 48900.5)

When other means of correction are implemented prior to imposing suspension upon a student, including
supervised suspension, the Superintende